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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT

This period Neptune focused on our integrated solutions with a particular emphasis on growing our existing businesses, increasing our footprint in our main
geographical regions and further developing the strategic relationships we have established with key partners in the industry.
Some key operational milestones achieved over the past nine months include:








Successful completion of two inspection campaigns, as part of our three-year contract with Qatargas.
Signing of a framework agreement with BP in the UK for the provision of subsea engineering services and support.
The award of several significant manufacturing contracts for new clients in the UK.
Utilisation of our proprietary NEPSYS® technology for a project in Australia and ongoing discussions for two further contracts internationally.
Recovery of the stabilisation business in both Australia and Asia, resulting in a steady flow of work.
An extended saturation DSV campaign which commenced in January.
Further inspection, repair and maintenance work under our master services agreement with Eni.

We continue to review and improve the way in which we operate through the implementation of new systems and processes.
STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIPS
Throughout this period, we established a number of significant long-term relationships; in August, we announced a five-year deal to provide a new build, shallow
water dive support vessel to Apache Energy, in conjunction with Bhagwan Marine. Later in the period, we established a partnership with Singapore based vessel
operator Pacific Radiance, to provide an integrated solution which included vessel supply, diving, survey and ROV services within Australia. This partnership
resulted in the completion of a successful six-month campaign including work on mooring systems, SSIV inspections, geotechnical drilling services and
commissioning activities for a number of clients.
HEALTH AND SAFETY
Our emphasis on further improving our health and safety performance remained paramount, and we were pleased to achieve close to a 50% reduction in our
Total Recordable Incident Frequency Rate (TRIFR) compared to the previous year.
OUTLOOK
The market outlook in our key areas of operation is encouraging and we are well positioned to capture our share of these opportunities. We will continue to
work closely with our strategic partners and explore further potential opportunities with these, and new partners.
Finally, I would like to recognise and acknowledge the entire Neptune team for their support and contribution over the past nine months and thank them for
their ongoing commitment to the company.

Robin King
Chief Executive Officer
Dated this 28 day of May 2013
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Your Directors present their report on the Company and its controlled entities for the financial period ended 31 March 2013.
The names of Directors in office at any time during or since the end of the period are:
Mr Peter Wallace (appointed Chairman 1st October 2012)
Mr Boon Wee Kuah
Mr Jeff Dowling
Mr John Cooper
Mr Ross Kennan (resigned 27th November 2012)
Directors have been in office since the start of the financial period to the date of this report unless otherwise stated.

INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS
Mr Peter Wallace

Chairman (appointed 1st October 2012)

Qualifications

Mr Wallace is a Senior Fellow of the financial services Institute of Australia, a Fellow of the Australian
Institute of Company Directors, and an Associate Fellow of the Australian Institute of Management.

Experience

Mr Wallace has spent some 40 years in the Financial Services industry with experience gained in all
aspects of financing with particular involvement in corporate and International funding. Past Executive
positions held include Chief Credit Officer and Chief Operating Officer roles in a major regional Bank and
Head of Corporate WA for Bell Potter Securities Ltd, one of Australia’s largest stockbroking houses. He
has directed capital raising for several large publicly listed companies as well as provided a variety of
corporate advisory services to a wide range of companies, both private and publicly owned.

Directorships held in other listed
entities

Mr Wallace has held a number of public and private company Board positions including past
Directorships in Decmil Engineering Ltd, RuralAus Investments Ltd and Tethyan Copper Ltd and is a
serving Non-Executive Director of HBF Health Ltd and Katana Investments Ltd.

Mr Boon Wee Kuah

Non-Executive Director

Qualifications

Mr Kuah has a Bachelor of Engineering (1st Class Honours) from Imperial College of Science and
Technology, London. He is also an Associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales (ICAEW), having trained with KPMG in London.

Experience

Mr Kuah is the Group CEO of MTQ Corporation Limited; he joined the MTQ Board on 10 October 2006
and assumed his current role in July 2010. Prior to that, Mr Kuah has had a distinguished international
career working in London, Hong Kong, Australia and Singapore. He had previously been a Senior
Management Executive of PSA International Pte Ltd, a 100% subsidiary of Temasek Holdings which has
extensive port interests around the world. He served as CEO for South East Asia and Singapore Terminals
as well as Group CFO of PSA. He also served as CFO for Singapore Technologies Engineering, a major
listed company on the Singapore Stock Exchange (“SGX”), also majority-owned by Temasek Holdings.

Directorships held in other listed
entities

Mr Kuah currently is the independent Non-Executive Director with The Hour Glass Limited, a position he
has held since April 2011 and is also the Board of Director of MTQ Corporation Limited since October
2006. He also sits on the Board of a few non-listed entities in the education and government sector.

Mr Jeff Dowling

Non-Executive Director

Qualifications

Mr Dowling has a Bachelor of Commerce from the University of Western Australia. He is a fellow of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants, the Australian Institute of Company Directors and the Financial
Services Institute of Australasia.

Experience

Mr Dowling is a highly experienced corporate leader with 37 years’ experience in professional services
with Ernst & Young. He has held numerous leadership roles within Ernst & Young which principally
focused on the oil and gas and mining industries. His professional expertise centres around audit, risk
management and corporate transactions. His financial knowledge is derived from acting as lead partner
on large public company audits, capital raisings and corporate transactions. During his career with Ernst
& Young he was a member of the Australian & New Zealand Executive leadership team and was a
member of Ernst & Young’s Australian Board of Partners. Prior to leaving Ernst & Young he was the
Managing Partner of the Ernst & Young Western Region for a period of 5 years and also led their Oceania
oil and gas practice for a period of 6 years.

Directorships held in other listed
entities and limited companies

Mr Dowling is currently a Director at Sirius Resources, Atlas Iron, the Telethon Institute for Child Health
Research and the Western Australian Symphony Orchestra Ltd.
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Mr John Cooper

Non-Executive Director

Qualifications

Fellow, The Institute of Company Directors; Fellow, Australian Institute of Management; Fellow,
Institution of Engineers.

Experience

Mr Cooper has held a range of Senior Executive Management and Board roles associated with
development of major capital works throughout Australia and internationally. In 21 years with Concrete
Constructions, Mr Cooper managed major construction projects in South East Asia and Australia. He was a
managing Director and Chief Executive of CMPS&F, a design engineering and project management
organisation specialising in oil and gas, mining, infrastructure and environmental contracts sectors in
Australia and South East Asia. Mr Cooper held a general management role with the Sydney Olympic
Games Organising Committee, responsible for contingency planning and technology/Games management.

Directorships held in other listed
entities

Mr Cooper is currently a Non-Executive Director on the Aurizon Board, the Chairman at Southern Cross
Electrical Engineering and a Non-Executive Director at NRW Holdings. He has held Executive management
roles and Board positions at a number of construction and engineering companies including, Murray and
Roberts International which operates in Australia, Canada, the UAE and South Africa.

Mr Ross Kennan

Non-Executive Director (resigned 27th November 2012)

Qualifications

Fellow, Institution of Engineers, Australia; Fellow, Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Experience

Mr Kennan, aged 73, has had an accomplished international career, most notably as Vice President and
Strategic Business Unit Co-Chair for international diversified technology and manufacturing company,
Honeywell Inc., where he spent 26 years in Senior Executive positions. Mr Kennan has over 17 years of
international experience which enabled him to provide strategic advice to support Neptune’s global
activity supporting major clients.

Company Secretary, Mr Gabriel Chiappini, AICD, ICAA
Mr Gabriel Chiappini was appointed Company Secretary on 20 August 2007. He is currently Company Secretary for a number of ASX listed companies. Mr
Chiappini is a Chartered Accountant and member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors and Institute of Chartered Accountants Australia. He
graduated from Edith Cowan University in 1990 with a Bachelor of Business majoring in Finance and Accounting and has worked predominantly in London and
Perth with a broad range of industry experience.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS
The relevant interest of each Director in the shares and options issued by the company at the date of this report is as follows:

Mr Peter Wallace
Mr Boon Wee Kuah (*)
Mr Jeff Dowling
Mr John Cooper

Ordinary Shares
-

Options over Ordinary Shares
-

(*) Mr Boon Wee Kuah is associated with Blossomvale Investments Pte Ltd, which is the controlling entity of Neptune.

DIVIDENDS PAID OR RECOMMENDED
No dividend has been declared or paid by the Company to the date of this report and no dividend is proposed in respect of the period ended 31 March 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activities of the consolidated Group comprises: commercial diving services; hydrographic surveying, positioning and geophysical services; NDT and
inspection services; pipeline stabilisation and grouting; ROV services; subsea and pipeline engineering; manufacturing, assembly and testing services and dry
underwater welding using the proprietary patented NEPSYS® technology.
Neptune’s primary focus is the international oil and gas, marine and renewable energy industries in the key regions of Australia, Asia and the UK.
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
On the 30 October 2012, MTQ Corporation Limited announced its off-market takeover offer of Neptune by its wholly owned subsidiary Blossomvale Investments
Pte Ltd. Following the achievement of ownership of more than 50% of Neptune on 10 December 2012, Blossomvale gained effective control of the company.
Subsequent to this, Neptune changed its financial year-end date to 31 March 2013 to align with that of MTQ Corporation. All subsequent results are for the
period 1 July 2012 to 31 March 2013.
Neptune reported a net loss after tax of $17.395 million for the nine month period ended 31 March 2013. To aid in the understanding of the result, below is a
table setting various elements comprising the net loss for the period:

Statutory Accounting Net Loss Before Tax Including Discontinued Operations
Goodwill Impairment
Fixed Asset Impairment
Takeover Related Expenses
Underlying Operating Profit Before Tax

$000
16,923
16,515
780
1,187
1,559

After a disappointing first half, the revenue rebounded strongly in the March 2013 quarter totalling $45.945 million. This resulted in revenues of $87.627 million
for the nine-month period. The strong revenue for the March quarter was driven by consecutive projects in the north west of Australia, which included the
provision of multiple Neptune services, plus the supply of a vessel.
Despite the losses, the Group recorded a positive operating cash flow during the period of $3.506 million. As at 31 March, interest bearing debt was down to
only $0.278 million.
The Group has also continued to make progress on reducing overhead expenditure with Corporate, Shared Services and Board expenses all dropping significantly
from 2012.
Following the completion of the restructuring plan in the previous financial year, this period focused on securing additional contracts in key geographical
regions, maintaining relationships with strategic clients and returning the business to stability to provide a platform for sustainable growth.
Neptune also appointed Vincent Allegre as Chief Operating Officer in August, Mr Allegre has more than 20 years’ experience in the oil and gas and engineering
industries in Australia, Asia, Europe, North America, Middle East and Africa.
OFFSHORE SERVICES
The Offshore Services division reported revenues totalling $79.118 million for the period ended 31 March.
Activity on the North West Shelf of Western Australia remained robust and Neptune secured contracts servicing this region and is well positioned to secure
further long-term contracts as the major constructions projects in this area continue to progress.
Neptune expanded its presence in Australia with the establishment of two new bases on the Eastern coast. The new facilities in Gladstone, Queensland and
Melbourne, Victoria are both now operational. The asset integrity division completed its first project in the Bass Strait subsequent to the opening of its new
Victorian base and expanded its IRATA rope access training business, with the commencement of training courses at the new facilities.
The survey division in Australia felt the effects of a highly competitive market, international survey companies are continuing to enter the thriving Australian
market, driving prices and revenue down and adding increasing commercial pressure on established survey companies.
Operational highlights included:







The signing of a five year contract to provide a new-build shallow water dive support vessel and related services to Apache Energy Limited in
conjunction with Bhagwan Marine.
Provision of new works and an inspection campaign on-board Pacific Radiance vessel, the Crest Odssey 2, for the Modec Venture 11.
Completion of Neptune’s first saturation diving project in Australia with a key vessel partner.
The signing of a strategic alliance with Thailand based, Beacon Subsea Limited, to provide Neptune’s services to the Thai market.
The completion of a five yearly class inspection of a semi-submersible drill rig on the North West Shelf.
A rockbolting campaign and associated freespan correction scope for the DomGas pipeline installation.

ENGINEERING SERVICES
The Engineering Services division reported revenue of $25.841 million for the period ended 31 March.
Both the Australian and UK engineering divisions experienced growth throughout the financial period. The businesses continued to develop relationships with
long-term clients, in particular, the UK engineering division secured several formal agreements to deliver ongoing engineering services.
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The manufacturing, testing and assembly business in the UK returned to stability after several management changes in the previous year. The division secured
and completed several significant contracts, including their largest manufacturing contract to date, for a key oil and gas contractor in the region. They also
continued to work closely with the UK engineering division to provide a total design, engineering and manufacturing solution for clients.
Operational highlights included:




The signing of a framework agreement with BP in the UK for the provision of subsea engineering services.
The award and commencement of Neptune’s first FPSO repair project utilising the Company’s patented dry underwater welding technology,
NEPSYS®, in Australia.
Two significant manufacturing contracts for a long-term client in the UK.

OPERATING RESULTS
The consolidated loss of the Group after income tax, for the nine month period to 31 March 2013, amounted to $17.395 million (12 months ended 30 June 2012:
$39.927 million).
The key elements to note concerning the operating loss are:

A goodwill impairment charge of $16.515 million.

A fixed asset impairment charge of $0.780 million.

$1.187 million in expenses related to the takeover by Blossomvale Investments Pte Ltd.

Underlying operating profit before tax of the Group was $1.559 million (page 7).

FINANCIAL POSITION
The net assets of the consolidated Group have decreased to $69.009 million at 31 March 2013 down from $86.595 million as at 30 June 2012. Included in these
assets is goodwill of $12.159 million (2012: $28.782 million). Net tangible assets were $55.151 million compared to $55.938 million at 30 June 2012.
Debt Position
As at 31 March 2013 the Company had interest bearing debts of $0.278 million (2012: $1.690 million) which consisted of $0.267 million in equipment leasing /
hire purchase commitments (2012 $0.398 million). Interest-bearing debt as a percentage of equity was 0.4% (2012: 1.9%).
Cash and Liquidity
As at 31 March 2013, cash and cash equivalents were $9.741 million (2012: $7.786 million), plus term deposits of $1.085 million (2012: $3.096 million) which is
held to support bank guarantees. At 31 March 2013 the working capital position was $29.488 million (30 June 2012: $29.494 million). This equates to a current
ratio (current assets / current liabilities) of 2.3 (2012: 2.7)
Goodwill Impairment
There has been a decrease in the period in goodwill of $16.515 million and a negative accumulated foreign exchange difference of $0.108 to bring the closing
balance to $12.159 million compared to the previous year (2012: $28.782 million).
The goodwill impairment resulted from an assessment at 31 December 2012. No further write-downs were required following the assessment at 31 March 2013.
Significant Changes in State of Affairs
Except for the change in ownership of the Group, as outlined at the start of this report, there have not been any further significant changes in the State of
Affairs.
After Balance Date Events
There were no after balance date events.
Future Development, Prospects and Business Strategy
Neptune will continue to work towards sustainable growth and business stability in the 2014 financial year, utilising the opportunities and resources that are
available through the relationship with MTQ Corporation. Other key strategies to achieve this will include:




Working with the strategic partners established over the last 12 months to further develop our relationships and identify new potential partnerships
for growth.
Continue with the implementation of finance, information technology and health and safety systems, in order to enhance our business processes and
performance.
Investment in new technologies and equipment, to build on the Group’s current service offering and provide competitive advantages.

Environmental Requirements and Performance
Neptune’s operations are subject to both Commonwealth and State environmental legislation. Neptune’s Board believes that Neptune has the appropriate
management systems in place to ensure its statutory obligations are met and is not aware of any breach of these obligations.
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REMUNERATION REPORT (AUDITED)
This Remuneration Report for the period ended 31 March 2013 outlines the remuneration arrangements of the Company and the Group in accordance with the
requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 (The Act) and its regulations. This information has been audited as required by section 308(3C) of the Act.
This report details the nature and amount of remuneration under the current remuneration framework for each director of Neptune Marine Services Limited
(‘Neptune’), as well as for other “Key Management Personnel” (KMP) of the Group. The format of this report aligns with the June 2012 recommendations of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.
For the purpose of this report, the definition of KMP aligns with that of the Accounting Standards, namely: those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, either directly or indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise) of that entity.
Governance
In determining the remuneration of its Key Management Personnel (KMP), Neptune has established the Human Resources and Compensation Committee. The
Committee recommends to the Board appropriate human resources and compensation policies and practices including the specific remuneration (including base
pay, incentive payments, equity awards, superannuation, retirement rights, termination payments, services contracts) to the CEO and other KMP. The
proceedings of each Human Resources and Compensation Committee meeting are reported directly to the Board.
Diversity at Neptune Marine Services
The Group recognises the value contributed to the organisation by employing people with varying skills, cultural backgrounds, ethnicity and experience. As an
international operation, Neptune understands the value of having a culturally diverse workforce capable of operating in various countries. Neptune Marine
Services believes its diverse workforce is a key to its continued growth, improved productivity and performance.
We actively value and embrace the diversity of our employees and are committed to creating an inclusive workplace where everyone is treated equally and
fairly, and where discrimination, harassment and inequity are not tolerated. While Neptune Marine Services is committed to fostering diversity at all levels,
diversity has been and continues to be a priority for the Group.
To this end, the Group supports the recommendations contained in the ASX Corporate Governance Principles and Recommendations. The Group has established
a diversity policy outlining the Board’s views for achieving diversity. This is reviewed regularly to measure the progress towards achieving those policy objectives.
The diversity policy is available in the corporate governance section on the Group’s website. Neptune is continuing to work towards achieving improved
outcomes in line with our policy.
Remuneration Philosophy and Policy
(i)
Non-Executive Director remuneration
The Board seeks to set aggregate remuneration at a level that provides the Company with the ability to attract and retain Directors of the highest calibre, whilst
incurring a cost that is acceptable to shareholders.
The amount of aggregate remuneration sought to be approved by shareholders and the fee structure is reviewed regularly against fees paid to Non-Executive
Directors (NEDs) of comparable companies. The Board considers advice from external consultants when undertaking the review process. As there was no
increase in fees in 2013, Neptune did not engage any external consultants during the period.
The Company’s constitution and the ASX listing rules specify that the NED fee pool shall be determined from time to time by a general meeting. The latest
determination was at the 2007 Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on 19 November 2007 when shareholders approved an aggregate fee pool of $600,000,
such fees to be allocated to the Directors as the Board of Directors may determine. Total fees paid out of this pool for period to 31 March, including
superannuation and committee fees, was $404,841.
Mr Wallace and Mr Dowling were paid additional fees during the period to reflect the extra work involved in dealing with the takeover bid by Blossomvale
Investments Pte Ltd (Blossomvale).
The Board will not seek any increase for the NED pool at the 2013 AGM.
(ii)
Executive remuneration
The remuneration policy at Neptune is based on the philosophy of aligning Executive remuneration with shareholder and business objectives. This is achieved by
providing a fixed remuneration component in combination with specific short-term and long-term incentives that are based on key performance areas that
directly impact on the financial results of the consolidated Neptune Group.
The Board believes the remuneration policy is both appropriate and effective in its ability to attract and retain high calibre Executives to manage the
consolidated Neptune Group.
The remuneration structure for key Executives is based on a number of factors, including:




Experience of the individual concerned
Overall company performance
Continuity of service (where relevant for various reward incentives)

NEPTUNE MARINE SERVICES LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN: 76 105 665 843

9

2013 FINANCIAL REPORT

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Key Management Personnel are also remunerated based on achievement of short and long term objectives considered important to the success of the
Company.
All remuneration paid to key Executives is valued at the cost to the Company and is expensed. Where relevant, shares allocated to key Executives are valued as
the difference between the market price of those shares and the amount paid by the Executives.
Remuneration Structure
(i)
Non-Executive Directors
The remuneration of NEDs consists of Directors’ fees and Committee fees. NEDs do not receive retirement benefits, nor do they participate in any incentive
programs.
Each NED, except Board Chairman, receives a base cash fee of $70,000 plus superannuation for being a Director of the Group, while the Board Chairman receives
a base cash fee of $140,000 plus superannuation. An additional fee of $7,500 to $15,000 (depending on the function of the committee) plus superannuation is
paid if the Director (except for the Board Chairman) is a Chair of a Board Committee. The payment of additional fees for serving on a committee recognises the
additional time commitment required by NEDs who serve on sub-committees.
(ii)
Executive
Neptune is committed to ensuring its remuneration structures are appropriately aligned with shareholder value creation over the short and long term and
focuses on motivating, rewarding and retaining key Executives. Our structures aim to link performance and reward while taking into account challenges and
market forces that companies such as Neptune are confronted with when faced with cyclical and economic forces. Neptune’s remuneration framework is based
on the outcome of an independent review conducted by PriceWaterhouseCoopers in 2010.
The key initiatives under this review were:






Benchmarking Executive remuneration to determine where the roles were currently positioned, looking at base salary, short-term incentives and
long-term incentives.
Segmentation of employees into 3 key groupings to better tailor remuneration packages for specific groups of employees
o
Segment 1 - individuals within Neptune who are best able to influence the long-term strategy and direction of the organisation
o
Segment 2 – key managers across the organisation who have greater influence over business unit outcomes rather than company-wide
outcomes
o
Segment 3 – all other employees
Creating a Total Annual Remuneration Framework for Segment 1 and 2 employees.
Design and implementation of a new equity-based long-term incentive plan.

Neptune’s remuneration strategy recognises and rewards performance in a way that is consistent with general practices in the markets in which the Group
operates. The Company’s remuneration philosophy is focused on the following key principles:








Alignment to sustainable long-term value creation
Attraction and retention of highly skilled employees
Competitiveness within the global markets in which the company operates
Alignment through high levels of equity ownership
High rewards for true outperformance
Simple and transparent remuneration framework
Consistent remuneration framework across the organisation

As a result of these reviews the Board adopted the Executive Long Term Incentive Plan (LTI Plan) and the Executive Short Term Incentive Plan (STI Plan).
The objective of the LTI Plan is to reward performance that achieves long term growth in shareholder value. The objective of the 2013 STI Plan is to reward
Neptune’s Executives for occupational safety & health targets, continued cost savings, efficiencies, growth in revenues, margin control, and organisational
initiatives. Both plans seek to reward and incentivise by aligning the interests of Executives with those of shareholders, and are intended to form part of the
overall remuneration package of the Executive.
The CEO’s remuneration mix comprises:
Fixed Element
Salary and allowances - 33% remuneration as a proportion of total remuneration
At Risk Element
Up to 33% based on achievement of short term KPI’s and profit outcomes (STI); and
Up to 33% long term incentives (LTI) based on specific performance outcomes
Executives’ remuneration mix ranges from 50% fixed remuneration as a proportion of total remuneration, up to 25% STI based on KPI’s and 25% based on LTI
performance outcomes. In addition, Executives are eligible for a further discretionary bonus approved by the Board in case of significant over performance.
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The employment conditions of the Chief Executive Officer, Robin King and other key Executives are formalised in contracts of employment. The contracts for
service between the Company and Executives are on a continuing, permanent basis. Upon retirement, Executives are paid employee benefit entitlements
accrued to the date of retirement. Subject to the terms and conditions of the employment contracts, any performance right or option that has not vested or
been exercised before or on the date of termination will subsequently lapse.
Directors, Executives and employees receive superannuation contributions. The contribution currently stands at 9% however some individuals choose to
sacrifice a portion of their salary in order to increase contributions towards superannuation.
Total Remuneration Components
For FP13 the total annual remuneration structure for Segment 1 and 2 employees was as per the below table

Segment 1 – CEO, CFO, Group Functional Heads
Short-term
Incentive

Fixed

Long Term
Incentive

Deferred STI

Cash Based

Retention
Rights

Total
Remuneration

Equity Based

Segment 2 – Business Unit managers, Functional heads, other key employees
Short-term
Incentive

Fixed

Cash Based

Retention
Rights

Deferred STI

Total
Remuneration

Equity Based

Reward Mix: The CEO will have over 66% of his total annual remuneration at-risk (i.e. subject to performance) while other Segment 1 employees will have
between 40% and 50% of their total annual remuneration at-risk. For Segment 2 employees, approximately 30% of their total annual remuneration will be atrisk. This structure ensures that a significant portion of an employee’s remuneration is directly linked to performance.
Fixed Remuneration: An employee’s fixed remuneration is based on market benchmarking to ensure the pay is commensurate with the market in which the
Group operates. The market benchmarking uses data obtained from similar sized ASX listed companies which operate in the mining/resources services sector
and international listed companies with which Neptune competes for projects. In setting remuneration, consideration is given to the experience, skills and
knowledge of role incumbents. Fixed remuneration is comprised of base salary, superannuation, other benefits and the cost of Fringe Benefits Tax, and is
designed to reward “come-to-work” behaviours, values and activities required to fulfil individuals’ job description.
Short-term Incentives (STI): STI rewards reflect both individual and business performance over the relevant financial period through the use of individual
performance scorecards. Each employee will have a target STI expressed as a percentage of their base salary. Payment of the individual’s target STI is
dependent on performance against their scorecard, which measures performance against the following key performance drivers:





Financial Performance – based directly on financial performance against targets
Occupational Health, Safety and Environment (typical KPI’s are based around excellence in achieving overall Company performance on safety,
Executive participation in safety activities and compliance with laws)
Human Resources Management (typical KPI’s are measurements of turnover, staff costs and employee disputes)
Operational Effectiveness (typical KPI’s are successful completion of special projects, identification of cost savings, improvements in operating
systems, debtors collection, compliance with laws etc.)

Deferred Short Term Incentive (Deferred STI): Is designed to reward exceptional performance and is paid in the form of equity. Qualifying employees receive
one third of the incentive at the assessment date, one third after 12 months and the remaining third at the end of two years. The employee must remain with
the Company to continue to be eligible to receive the deferred portion of the equity. During the financial period, no deferred STI’s were granted to employees.
Long-term Incentives (LTI): LTI awards are limited to those employees who can directly influence the long-term strategic direction of the Company. The LTI is
delivered via a grant of Performance Rights, which has the following key features:





Grant Value: Set as a percentage of base salary, ranging between 25% to 100%, depending on the role.
Grant Cycle: Employees receive a grant every year as part of their total annual remuneration.
Vesting / Performance Period: Performance Rights will vest on the 4th anniversary of their grant date, subject to meeting the performance hurdles.
This period of time ensures that the performance outcomes are long-term and sustainable.
Performance Conditions: each grant of Performance Right will be split into two equal tranches, with each tranche having an independent
performance hurdle.
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Tranche 1: Performance will be measured against relative Total Shareholder Return (TSR), based on performance against a select group of peer companies that
represents those companies against which Neptune competes within the market. It is simply a function of the business in which Neptune operates that most of
those competitors are internationally based.
Relative TSR has been identified as an appropriate performance measure as outperformance of Neptune against this peer group will be strongly correlated to
improved shareholder value. This is on the basis that outperformance against this peer group would typically mean Neptune has been successful in growing its
share of the market at the expense of its competitors or faster than industry averages.
Tranche 1 will vest based on the following performance schedule:

Relative TSR performance

Vesting Outcomes (% vested of TOTAL Performance Rights Grant)

Less than 50th percentile

0% vesting

th

At 50 percentile

25% vesting

Between 50th and 75th percentile

For each percentile over the 50th, an additional 1% of the performance rights will vest

At or above 75th percentile

50% vesting

Tranche 2: Performance will be measured against absolute Total Shareholder Return (TSR), based on a Compound Average Growth Rate (CAGR) target over the
four year period. A cost of capital calculation will be used to assess absolute TSR and will determine vesting outcome. Absolute TSR performance exceeding
Neptune’s cost of capital will result in the creation of shareholder value. It ensures that investors and shareholders receive a positive return before the awards
vest and also takes into account factors that are unique to Neptune that other companies within a comparator group may not share.
Tranche 2 will vest based on the following performance schedule:

Absolute TSR Performance

Vesting Outcomes (% vested of TOTAL Performance Rights Grant)

Less than 14% TSR CAGR

0% vesting

14% TSR CAGR

25% vesting

16% TSR CAGR

50% vesting

Linear vesting between 14% and 16% TSR
Retention Rights
During the period of restructuring in 2011 there was significant uncertainly over the continuing operations of Neptune. At this time, the Board identified the
potential loss of key staff as a critical risk and a threat to the restructuring efforts. As a result, the Board implemented a retention programme in 2011 whereby
Executives identified as key to the organisation’s objectives to restructure and grow the business will be awarded with Retention Rights. The Retention Rights
are tied into the Executives’ continued employment with the Company, will have a five year life and will vest annually in equal tranches over 4 years. Should the
employee resign during this five year period, any unvested Retention Rights will lapse. Under certain circumstances, including change of control events, there
may be pro-rata and/or accelerated vesting of unvested Retention Rights.
As a result of the takeover offer by Blossomvale, the CEO and CFO were permitted to accelerate the vesting of these rights. In addition, employees with these
rights were also permitted to accelerate the vesting of part of their entitlement.
During the current period retention rights were issued to Key Management Personnel, COO Vincent Allegre (6 million). These will vest in accordance with the
conditions mentioned above.
The maximum number of rights granted to employees and ratified at the 2011 AGM was 41,836,110. At 31 March 2013, due to the vesting of some of the rights
issue of new rights and resignations of employees, the outstanding balance is now a maximum of 14,488,147.
Chief Executive Officer Service Agreement – Mr Robin King
Under his contract, the CEO is entitled to the following conditions: if the Company terminates the agreement for any reason other than pursuant to specified
circumstances, including offences involving fraud or dishonesty or committal of a serious or persistent breach of the agreement which was incapable of
satisfactory remedy, the Company is required to pay to the CEO all remuneration accrued up to and including the date of termination, payment in lieu of annual
leave and long service leave to which he is entitled at the date of termination, and an amount equal to 12 months base salary plus any accrued performance
entitlements.
The CEO’s current cash salary at the date of this report is $550,000 per annum with an additional $40,000 per annum car allowance. The Remuneration
Committee determines the proportion of fixed and variable compensation for each Key Management Personnel.
NEPTUNE MARINE SERVICES LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
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Employment Contracts
The key terms and conditions of the current Executive and Executive service agreements are outlined below:

Executives

Position

Contract
Duration

Non-Solicitation
Clauses

Notice Periods based on Current Base
Salary

Mr Robin King

Chief Executive Officer

Unlimited

Up to 12 months

12 months by Neptune, 6 months by
the Executive

Mr Colin Napier

Chief Financial Officer

Unlimited

Up to 12 months

6 months by Neptune, 3 months by the
Executive

Mr Vincent Allegre

Chief Operating Officer

Unlimited

Up to 12 months

6 months by Neptune, 4 months by the
Executive

Hedging of Equity Awards
The Company does have a policy, which precludes Executives from entering into contracts to hedge their exposure to options awarded as part of their
remuneration package.
Company Performance and the Link to Remuneration
(i)
Short Term Incentive (STI)
For the CEO, CFO and COO, 50% of their STI is directly linked to measures of overall profit. For other Executives, up to 50% of their STI relates to profit although
this may be a mix of the profitability of the business or region under their direction and the overall Company performance. The ability to qualify for this
incentive depends upon whether Neptune achieves profit targets as set by the Board.
(ii)
Long Term Incentive (LTI)
As previously described, Neptune has an LTI scheme where executives with the ability to influence the long term success of the Company are granted shares
subject to certain performance hurdles. These hurdles are Total Shareholder Returns (TSR) with 50% being measured against a peer group of companies and
50% being measured against the growth in share price. The first potential vesting of these shares does not occur until 2015.
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Remuneration Outcomes
The remuneration received by KMP and NEDS during the 2013 financial period in ‘actual pay’ terms, is summarised in the below table.

Short-Term Benefits

Cash, salary &
Fees $

2013

NED
Payment1
$

Non - Cash
Benefit2
$

Bonus
$

Other3
$

PostEmployment
Benefits

Other
Long-term
Benefits

Superannuation
$

Other
$

Share-Based Payment

NED Share
Plan
$

Options
$

Retention
Rights Plan
$

LTI plan
$

Termination
Payments

Total

$

$

Proportion of
Remuneration
Based on
Performance %

Value of Options
as Proportion of
Remuneration
%

Directors
Mr Boon Wee Kuah
Mr Peter Wallace

4

45,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

45,000

0%

0%

137,937*

-

-

-

-

12,414

-

-

-

-

-

-

150,351

0%

0%

Mr Jeff Dowling

87,376*

-

-

-

-

7,864

-

-

-

-

-

-

95,240

0%

0%

Mr John Cooper

57,750

-

-

-

-

5,231

-

-

-

-

-

-

62,981

0%

0%

0%

0%

Former Directors
Mr Ross Kennan5

47,036

-

-

-

-

4,233

-

-

-

-

-

-

51,269

375,099

-

-

-

-

29,742

-

-

-

-

-

-

404,841

412,500

-

206,2506

5,913

30,000

71,888

-

-

-

309,300

77,504

-

1,113,355

48%

0%

7

Key Management
Personnel (KMP)
Mr Robin King
Mr Colin Napier

225,000

-

112,500

7,587

22,500

38,070

-

-

-

48,375

55,339

-

509,371

34%

0%

Mr Vincent Allegre8

262,319

-

133,3339

5,913

19,674

37,379

-

-

-

-

58,214

-

516,832

0%

0%

899,819

-

452,083

19,413

72,174

147,337

-

-

-

357,675

191,057

-

2,139,558

1,274,918

-

452,083

19,413

72,174

177,079

-

-

-

357,675

191,057

-

2,544,399

* Included in fees were payments made to Peter Wallace and Jeff Dowling for additional work provided in relation to the Company’s response to the takeover offer from Blossomvale Investments Pte Ltd.
1 Cash payment to reimburse for forced sales of NED share plan shares issued in error – no such payments made in the current period.
2 Car park benefits for the 9 month period ended 31 March 2013.
3 Other includes vehicle allowances.
4 Appointed Chairman 1st October 2012.
5 Resigned 27 November 2012.
6 Amount represents a 9 month bonus accrual based on full year entitlements. These amounts are subject to final approval, with outcomes based on the success in meeting Key Performance Indicators (KPI’s).
7 Amount represents a 9 month bonus accrual based on full year entitlements. These amounts are subject to final approval, with outcomes based on the success in meeting KPI’s
8 Appointed 6th August 2012.
9 Amount represents an 8 month bonus accrual based on full year entitlements. These amounts are subject to final approval, with outcomes based on the success in meeting KPI’s
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Short-Term Benefits

Cash, Salary &
Fees $

2012

NED
payment10
$

Non - cash
benefit
$

Bonus
$

Other11
$

PostEmployment
Benefits

Other
Long-term
Benefits

Superannuation
$

Other
$

Share-based Payment

NED share
plan
$

Options
$

LTI plan
$

Retention
Rights Plan
$

Termination
Payments

Total

$

$

Directors

Proportion of
Remuneration
based on
Performance %

Value of Options
as Proportion of
Remuneration
%

0%

0%

140,000

11,600

-

-

-

13,644

-

16,000

-

-

-

-

181,244

0%

0%

Mr Boon Wee Kuah

68,650

1,350

-

-

-

-

-

2,000

-

-

-

-

72,000

0%

0%

12

69,985

-

-

-

-

6,299

-

-

-

-

-

-

76,284

0%

0%

13

44,570

-

-

-

-

4,011

-

-

-

-

-

-

48,581

0%

0%

Mr John Cooper14

17,580

-

-

-

-

1,582

-

-

-

-

-

-

19,162

0%

0%

19,375

5,600

-

-

-

2,248

-

8,000

-

-

-

-

35,223

0%

0%

-

2,333

-

-

-

210

-

3,333

-

-

-

-

5,876

0%

0%

63,750

5,800

-

-

-

6,259

-

8,000

-

-

-

-

83,809

0%

0%

423,910

26,683

-

-

-

34,253

37,333

-

-

-

-

522,179

Mr Robin King

550,000

-

250,000*

-

40,000

62,100

799

-

-

59,125

138,496

-

1,100,520

11%

0%

Mr Colin Napier

275,000

-

63,000

-

27,500

27,225

213

-

-

16,125

41,861

-

0%

0%

Mr David de Loub17

12,308

-

-

-

19,209

16,183

-

-

-

-

-

165,000

212,700

0%

0%

Mr Kenneth Nimitz18

163,511

-

-

-

8,492

33,937

-

-

-

-

-

65,216

271,156

0%

0%

1,000,819

-

313,000

-

95,201

139,445

1,012

-

-

75,250

180,357

230,216

2,035,300

1,424,729

26,683

313,000

-

95,201

173,698

1,012

37,333

-

75,250

180,357

230,216

2,557,479

Mr Ross Kennan

Mr Peter Wallace
Mr Jeff Dowling

Former Directors
Mr Geoff Newman15
Mr David Agostini

11

Mr Robert Scott16
Key Management
Personnel (KMP)

450,924

Former KMPs

* This bonus represents amounts paid in respect of completing the 2011 restructure not paid until the 2012 year ($100,000) together with the 2012 bonus ($150,000) for meeting non-financial objectives.
10
Cash payment to reimburse for forced sales of NED share plan shares issued in error.
11
Other includes vehicle allowances and leave.
12
Appointed 8th July 2011
13
Appointed 1st December 2011
14
Appointed 4th April 2012
15
Resigned 30th September 2011
16
Resigned 30th March 2012
17
Resigned 29th July 2011
18
Resigned 31st January 2012
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Options Granted as Part of Remuneration for the 9 Months Ended 31 March 2013
In 2013, no options were granted.
No shares were issued to KMPs from the exercise of options during the period.
Shares Issued as Part of Remuneration
Long Term Incentive Plan
The Long Term Incentive Plan was approved by shareholders at the AGM held on 30th November 2011.

No of Rights
converted

No of Rights
lapsed

No of Rights
Vested

Value
per
right
$

Value of Rights
Granted
$

Grant Date

Vesting
Date

Key
Management
Personnel
Robin King

10/08/2011

10/08/2015

5,500,000

-

-

5,500,000

-

0.023

126,500

10/08/2011

10/08/2015

5,500,000

-

-

5,500,000

-

0.020

110,000

22/11/2012

22/11/2016

11,044,177

-

-

-

11,044,177

0.032

353,414

22/11/2012

22/11/2016

11,044,177

-

-

-

11,044,177

0.032

353,414

10/08/2011

10/08/2015

1,500,000

-

-

1,500,000

-

0.023

34,500

10/08/2011

10/08/2015

1,500,000

-

-

1,500,000

-

0.020

30,000

36,088,354

-

-

14,000,000

22,088,354

Colin Napier

No of Rights
Issued

Remaining
Rights not
yet Vested

2013

1,007,828

As part of their employment contract, Mr King and Mr Napier were entitled to early vesting of these rights in the event of a change in control of Neptune, which
occurred as a result of the takeover by Blossomvale.
Retention Rights Plan
These rights were approved by shareholders at the AGM held on 30th November 2011.

2013

No of Rights
Issued

No of Rights
converted

No of Rights
lapsed

No of Rights
Vested

Value
per
right
$

No of Rights
outstanding

Value of Rights
Granted
$

Grant Date

Vesting
Date

01/09/2010

1/09/2011

2,000,000

2,000,000

-

-

-

0.027

54,000

01/09/2010

1/09/2012

2,000,000

-

-

2,000,000

-

0.027

54,000

01/09/2010

1/09/2013

2,000,000

-

-

2,000,000

-

0.027

54,000

01/09/2010

1/09/2014

2,000,000

-

-

2,000,000

-

0.027

54,000

Key
Management
Personnel
Robin King

Colin Napier

Vincent
Allegre

10/08/2011

10/08/2012

900,000

-

-

900,000

-

0.027

24,300

10/08/2011

10/08/2013

900,000

-

-

900,000

-

0.027

24,300

10/08/2011

10/08/2014

900,000

-

-

900,000

-

0.027

24,300

10/08/2011

10/08/2015

900,000

-

-

900,000

-

0.027

24,300

27/09/2012

27/09/2013

1,500,000

-

-

-

1,500,000

0.025

37,500

27/09/2012

27/09/2014

1,500,000

-

-

-

1,500,000

0.025

37,500

27/09/2012

27/09/2015

1,500,000

-

-

-

1,500,000

0.025

37,500

27/09/2012

27/09/2016

1,500,000

-

-

-

1,500,000

0.025

37,500

17,600,000

2,000,000

-

9,600,000

6,000,000

463,200

As part of their employment contract, Mr King and Mr Napier were entitled to early vesting of these rights in the event of a change in control of Neptune, which
occurred as a result of the takeover by Blossomvale.

END OF AUDITED REMUNERATION REPORT

NEPTUNE MARINE SERVICES LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN: 76 105 665 843

16

2013 FINANCIAL REPORT

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

MEETING OF DIRECTORS
During the financial period, eight meetings of Directors (including Committees of Directors) were held. Attendances by each Director during the period were as
follows:
Directors' Meetings

Audit & Governance Committee Meetings

Number
Eligible to Attend

Number
Attended

Number
Eligible to Attend

Number
Attended

Mr Ross Kennan

4

4

1

1

Mr Boon Wee Kuah

8

6

-

-

Mr Peter Wallace

8

8

3

3

Mr Jeff Dowling

8

8

3

3

Mr John Cooper

8

8

-

-

Directors' Names

Human Resources & Compensation
Committee

Occupational Health, Safety & Environment

Number
Eligible to attend

Number
Attended

Number
Eligible to Attend

Number
Attended

-

-

1

1

Directors' Names
Mr Ross Kennan
Mr Boon Wee Kuah

-

-

-

-

Mr Peter Wallace

1

1

-

-

Mr Jeff Dowling

-

-

-

-

Mr John Cooper

-

-

2

2

Indemnification and Insurance of Directors and Officers
The Company indemnifies current and former Directors of the Company against all liabilities to another person (other than the company or a related body
corporate) that may arise from their position as Directors of the Company and its controlled entities, except where the liability arises out of conduct involving a
lack of good faith. The agreement stipulates that the Company will meet to the maximum extent permitted by law, the full amount of any such liabilities,
including costs and expenses.
The Company has also agreed to indemnify certain senior Executives and Officers for all liabilities to another person (other than the company or a related body
corporate) that may arise from their position in the Company and its controlled entities, except where the liability arises out of conduct involving a lack of good
faith. The agreement stipulates that the Company will meet to the maximum extent permitted by law, the full amount of any such liabilities, including costs and
expenses.
The Company paid a premium, during the period in respect of a Directors' and officers' liability insurance policy, insuring the Directors of the Company, the
Company Secretary, and all Executive Officers of the Company against a liability incurred while acting in the capacity of a Director, Secretary, or Executive Officer
to the extent permitted by the Corporations Act 2001. The Directors have not included details of the nature of the liabilities covered or the amount of the
premium paid in respect of the Directors' and Officers' liability and legal expenses' insurance contracts; as such disclosure is prohibited under the terms of the
insurance contract.
Options
At the date of this report, the unissued ordinary shares of Neptune Marine Services Limited under option are as follows:

Unlisted

Weighted average
exercise price

Number under
option

$0.64

5,306,347

All options entitled the holder to one ordinary share.

NEPTUNE MARINE SERVICES LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN: 76 105 665 843

17

2013 FINANCIAL REPORT

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Proceedings on Behalf of Company
No person has applied for leave of Court to bring proceedings on behalf of the company or intervene in any proceedings to which the company is a party for the
purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of the company for all or any part of those proceedings.
The company was not a party to any such proceedings during the period.
Employee Details
Details of the number of employees in the consolidated group as at 31 March 2013 are set out below:

Number of employees

2013
No.
377

2012
No.
360

Non-audit Services
Amounts paid to the auditor of the company, Ernst and Young, and its related practices for all non-audit services provided during the period were $54,000
(2012: $97,000). Refer Note 9 for details. The nature of non-audit services provided means that auditor independence was not compromised. The Directors are
satisfied that provision of non-audit services is compatible with the general standard of independence for auditors imposed by Corporations Act 2001.

Auditor Independence Declaration
The lead auditor’s independence declaration for the period ended 31 March 2013 has been received and can be found on page 20 of the Directors’ Report.

Rounding of Amounts
The company is an entity to which ASIC Class Order 98/100 applies. Accordingly, amounts in the financial statements and Directors’ report have been rounded to
the nearest thousand dollars.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

Peter Wallace
Chairman
Dated this 28 day of May 2013
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DIRECTORS' DECLARATION
In accordance with a resolution of the Directors of Neptune Marine Services Limited, I state that:
In the opinion of the Directors:
(a) the financial statements and notes of the consolidated entity are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:
(i) giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity’s financial position as at 31 March 2013 and of its performance for the nine months ended on
that date; and
(ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the Corporations Regulations 2001;
(b) the financial statements and notes also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in note 2(b);
(c) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the consolidated entity will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.
(d) this declaration has been made after receiving the declarations required to be made to the Directors in accordance with section 295A of the Corporations Act
2001 for the nine month period ending 31 March 2013.

Peter Wallace
Chairman
Dated this 28 day of May 2013
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AUDITORS INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE 9 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2013
Consolidated
9 Months
12 Months
2013
2012
Note

$000

$000

Revenue

6(a)

87,534

116,306

Other revenue

6(a)

93

140

87,627

116,446

(59,131)

(78,488)

28,496

37,958

Continuing operations

Total revenue
Cost of sales and services rendered
Gross profit
Other income

6(b)

Marketing expenses
Occupancy expenses
Corporate, shared services and board expenses

77

30

(244)

(224)

(2,878)

(3,699)

7(d)

(5,151)

(12,075)

Business operating expenses

7(e)

(17,714)

(19,218)

Takeover related costs

7(h)

(1,187)

-

(189)

(254)

(304)

(107)

(16,515)

(34,959)

(1,256)
(16,865)

(544)
(33,092)

Technical expenses
Finance costs
Goodwill impairment

7(a)

Other expenses
Loss from continuing operations before income tax

7(f)

Income tax expense

8

Loss from continuing operations after income tax

(472)

(702)

(17,337)

(33,794)

Discontinued operations
Loss from discontinued operations after income tax

11(b)

Net loss for the period

(58)

(6,133)

(17,395)

(39,927)

Earnings per share
Basic loss per share (cents per share)
Diluted loss per share (cents per share)

12
12

(0.01)
(0.01)

(0.05)
(0.05)

Earnings per share for profit from continuing operations
Basic loss per share (cents per share)

12

(0.01)

(0.04)

Diluted loss per share (cents per share)

12

(0.01)

(0.04)

The above consolidated income statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE 9 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

Consolidated
9 Months
2013
Net loss for the period

12 Months
2012

$000

$000

(17,395)

(39,927)

(874)

1,644

Other comprehensive income
Items in other comprehensive income that may be recycled subsequently through profit and loss
Foreign currency translation
Foreign currency reserve from discontinued operations recycled to income statement

(55)

5,902

(929)

7,546

Total comprehensive loss for the period

(18,324)

(32,381)

Total comprehensive loss for the period attributable to members of the parent

(18,324)

(32,381)

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated
31 March
2013
Note

$000

30 June
2012
$000

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

13

9,741

7,786

Trade and other receivables

14

25,663

27,335

Inventories

15

4,081

2,937

8

-

306

20

12,783

8,643

52,268

47,007

Current tax receivable
Other current assets
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Trade and other receivables

16

1,116

395

Property, plant and equipment

18

23,090

25,199

8

2,677

2,746

19

13,858

30,657

Deferred tax assets
Intangible assets and goodwill
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS

40,741

58,997

TOTAL ASSETS

93,009

106,004

21

21,125

14,775

8

347

1,461

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
Current tax liability
Interest bearing loans and borrowings

22

114

Provisions

23

1,194

1,277

22,780

17,513

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities
Provisions

22

164

229

8

800

1,380

23

256

287

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

1,220

1,896

TOTAL LIABILITIES

24,000

19,409

NET ASSETS

69,009

86,595

EQUITY
Contributed equity

24

273,804

273,031

Reserves

25

(22,213)

(21,249)

(182,582)

(165,187)

69,009

86,595

Accumulated losses
TOTAL EQUITY

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE 9 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

Retained Earnings
/(Accumulated
Losses)

Ordinary Shares

Foreign Currency
Translation Reserve

Employee Equity
Benefits Reserve

Hedge Reserve

Total

Consolidated
$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

271,155

(125,260)

(35,267)

6,354

170

117,152

-

(39,927)

-

-

-

(39,927)

Other comprehensive income from discontinued operation

-

-

5,902

-

-

5,902

Total comprehensive income for the period

-

(39,927)

7,546

-

-

(32,381)

47

-

-

-

-

47

1,775

-

-

-

-

1,775

-

-

-

2

Balance at 1 July 2011
Loss for the period
Other comprehensive income from continuing operations

1,644

$000

1,644

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners
Shares issued during the period
Vendor shares
Retention rights conversion

54

Cost of share based payments
Sub-total

-

(54)
2

-

1,876

(39,927)

7,546

(52)

-

(30,557)

Balance at 30 June 2012

273,031

(165,187)

(27,721)

6,302

170

86,595

Balance at 1 July 2012

273,031

(165,187)

(27,721)

6,302

170

86,595

Loss for the period

-

(17,395)

-

-

-

(17,395)

Other comprehensive income from continuing operations

-

-

(874)

-

-

(874)

Other comprehensive income from discontinued operation

-

-

(55)

-

-

(55)

Total comprehensive income for the period

-

(17,395)

(929)

-

-

(18,324)

773

-

-

(773)

-

-

-

-

-

738

-

738

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners
Retention rights conversion
Cost of share based payments
Sub-total
Balance at 31 March 2013

773

(17,395)

(929)

(35)

-

(17,586)

273,804

(182,582)

(28,650)

6,267

170

69,009

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE 9 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2013
Consolidated
9 Months
12 Months
31 March 2013
30 June 2012
Note

$000

$000

80,504

122,968

93

143

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers
Interest received
Payments to suppliers and employees

(76,487)

(119,445)

Interest paid

(304)

(123)

Income tax (paid)/received

(300)

923

3,506

4,466

14

2,882

Net cash flows derived from / operating activities

28(a)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of subsidiary assets (net of cash disposed)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Contingent consideration on prior period acquisition
Net cash flows derived used in investing activities

-

676

(2,342)

(4,020)

-

(4,106)

(2,328)

(4,568)

(1,413)

(4,403)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of borrowings
Receipts from promissory note loan
Proceed from borrowings

736

(736)

-

1,655

Receipt of deposits for bank guarantee

1,858

94

Net cash flows derived from/ (used in) financing activities

1,181

(3,390)

Net increase / decrease in cash and cash equivalents held

2,359

(3,492)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial period

7,786

10,965

Net foreign exchange difference

(404)

313

9,741

7,786

Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial period

13

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 1

Corporate Information

The financial report of the Neptune Marine Services Limited “Group” for the nine month period ended 31 March 2013 and was authorised for issue in
accordance with a resolution of the Director’s on 31 May 2013.
The financial report covers the consolidated Group of Neptune Marine Services Limited and its controlled entities. Neptune Marine Services Limited is a listed
public company, incorporated and domiciled in Australia.
The nature of the operations and principal activities of the Group are described in the Director’s Report.
Note 2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of Preparation
Change in financial year end date
Neptune Marine Services Limited And Controlled Entities obtained approval from the Australian Securities and Investments Commission (“ASIC”) to change its
financial year end date from 30 June to 31 March. As a result, the current financial year of the Group is the nine month period 1 July 2012 to 31 March 2013. As
such, the amounts presented in the financial report are not entirely comparable. Effective 1 April 2013, the financial years of the Group are for twelve month
periods ending 31 March.
The financial report is a general purpose financial report, which has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001, Australian
Accounting Standards and other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board. The financial report has been prepared on a
historical cost basis, except for derivative financial instruments and available for sale investments, which have been measured at fair value.
The financial report is presented in Australian dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($000) unless otherwise stated.
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous year other than in respect of changes in accounting policies described in note 2(c).
Going Concern
The financial report has been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the continuity of normal business activity and the realisation of assets and
the settlement of liabilities in the normal course of business.
As at 31 March 2013 the consolidated entity had net current assets of $29.488 million (2012: $29.494million). At that date the consolidated entity had cash and
cash equivalents of $9.741 million (2012: $7.786 million).
For the nine month period ended 31 March 2013 the consolidated entity has made a loss from continuing operations before tax of $16.865 million (12 months
ended 30 June 2012: $33.092 million) which included goodwill impairment write downs of $16.515 million in 2013 (12 months ended 30 June 2012: $34.959
million) and had operating cash inflows of $3.506 million (12 months ended 30 June 2012: inflows $4.466 million).
The Directors have reviewed the business outlook, the positive forecast cash flows and operating results for the 2013/14 year and the assets and liabilities of the
Group and are of the opinion that the use of the going concern basis of accounting is appropriate.
On this basis, it is the opinion of the Board of Directors that the consolidated entity will be able to continue as a going concern and that therefore, the basis of
preparation is appropriate.
(b) Compliance with IFRS
The financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.
(c) New Accounting Standards and Interpretations
(i)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
From 1 July 2012, Neptune Marine Services Limited has adopted all Australian Accounting Standard and Interpretations mandatory for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 July 2012. When the adoption of the Standard or Interpretation is deemed to have an impact on the financial statements or performance of the
Group, its impact is described below:
AASB 1054 Australian Additional Disclosures
This standard is as a consequence of phase 1 of the joint Trans-Tasman Convergence project of the AASB and FRSB.
This standard, with AASB 2011-1 relocates all Australian specific disclosures from other standards to one place and revises disclosures in the following areas:
(a)
Compliance with Australian Accounting Standards
(b)
The statutory basis or reporting framework for financial statements
(c)
Whether the entity is a for-profit or not-for-profit entity
(d)
Whether the financial statements are general purpose or special purpose
(e)
Audit fees
(f)
Imputation credits
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(c) New Accounting Standards and Interpretations (continued)
AASB 2010-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Disclosures on Transfers of Financial Assets [AASB 1 & AASB 7]
The amendments increase the disclosure requirements for transactions involving transfers of financial assets which are not derecognised and introduce new
disclosures for assets that are derecognised but the entity continues to have a continuing exposure to the asset after the sale.
AASB 1048 Interpretation of Standards
AASB 1048 identifies the Australian interpretations and classifies them into two groups: those that correspond to an IASB interpretation and those that do not.
Entities are required to apply each relevant Australian interpretation in preparing financial statements that are within the scope of the standard. The revised
version of AASB 1048 updates the lists of interpretations for new and amended interpretations issued since the June 2010 version of AASB 1048.
2012-9 amends AASB 1048 as a consequence of the withdrawal of Australian Interpretation 1039 Substantive Enactment of Major Tax Bills in Australia.
AASB 2010-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets [AASB 112]
These amendments address the determination of deferred tax on investment property measured at fair value and introduce a rebuttable presumption that
deferred tax on investment property measured at fair value should be determined on the basis that the carrying amount will be recoverable through sale. The
amendments also incorporate SIC-21 Income Taxes - Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable Assets into AASB 112.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(c) New Accounting Standards and Interpretations (continued)
New and Amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective
The following standards and interpretations have been issued by the AASB but are not yet effective and have not been adopted by the Group for 9 months end
31 March 2013.

Reference

AASB 9

Title

Financial
Instruments

Summary

AASB 9 includes requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets. It was further amended by
AASB 2010-7 to reflect amendments to the accounting for
financial liabilities.

Application
Date of
Standard
1 January
2015

Impact on Group
Financial Report

The Group is yet
to assess the
impact

Application
Date for
Group
1 July 2015

These requirements improve and simplify the approach for
classification and measurement of financial assets
compared with the requirements of AASB 139. The main
changes are described below.
a) Financial assets that are debt instruments will be
classified based on (1) the objective of the entity's
business model for managing the financial assets; (2)
the characteristics of the contractual cash flows.
b) Allows an irrevocable election on initial recognition to
present gains and losses on investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading in other
comprehensive income. Dividends in respect of these
investments that are a return on investment can be
recognised in profit or loss and there is no impairment
or recycling on disposal of the instrument.
c) Financial assets can be designated and measured at fair
value through profit or loss at initial recognition if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency that would arise from
measuring assets or liabilities, or recognising the gains
and losses on them, on different bases.
d) Where the fair value option is used for financial
liabilities the change in fair value is to be accounted for
as follows:
►
The change attributable to changes in credit risk
are presented in other comprehensive income
(OCI)
►
The remaining change is presented in profit or
loss
If this approach creates or enlarges an accounting mismatch
in the profit or loss, the effect of the changes in credit risk
are also presented in profit or loss.
Further amendments were made by AASB 2012-6 which
amends the mandatory effective date to annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015. AASB 2012-6
also modifies the relief from restating prior periods by
amending AASB 7 to require additional disclosures on
transition to AASB 9 in some circumstances. Consequential
amendments were also made to other standards as a result
of AASB 9, introduced by AASB 2009-11 and superseded by
AASB 2010-7 and 2010-10.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(c) New Accounting Standards and Interpretations (continued)

Reference

AASB 9

Title

Financial
Instruments

Summary

AASB 9 includes requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets. It was further amended by
AASB 2010-7 to reflect amendments to the accounting for
financial liabilities.

Application
Date of
Standard
1 January
2015

Impact on Group
Financial Report

The Group is yet
to assess the
impact

Application
Date for
Group
1 July 2015

These requirements improve and simplify the approach for
classification and measurement of financial assets
compared with the requirements of AASB 139. The main
changes are described below.
a) Financial assets that are debt instruments will be
classified based on (1) the objective of the entity's
business model for managing the financial assets; (2)
the characteristics of the contractual cash flows.
b) Allows an irrevocable election on initial recognition to
present gains and losses on investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading in other
comprehensive income. Dividends in respect of these
investments that are a return on investment can be
recognised in profit or loss and there is no impairment
or recycling on disposal of the instrument.
c) Financial assets can be designated and measured at fair
value through profit or loss at initial recognition if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency that would arise from
measuring assets or liabilities, or recognising the gains
and losses on them, on different bases.
d) Where the fair value option is used for financial
liabilities the change in fair value is to be accounted for
as follows:
►
The change attributable to changes in credit risk
are presented in other comprehensive income
(OCI)
►
The remaining change is presented in profit or
loss
If this approach creates or enlarges an accounting mismatch
in the profit or loss, the effect of the changes in credit risk
are also presented in profit or loss.
Further amendments were made by AASB 2012-6 which
amends the mandatory effective date to annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015. AASB 2012-6
also modifies the relief from restating prior periods by
amending AASB 7 to require additional disclosures on
transition to AASB 9 in some circumstances. Consequential
amendments were also made to other standards as a result
of AASB 9, introduced by AASB 2009-11 and superseded by
AASB 2010-7 and 2010-10.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(c) New Accounting Standards and Interpretations (continued)

Reference

Title

Summary

AASB 10

Consolidated
Financial
Statements

AASB 10 establishes a new control model that applies to all
entities. It replaces parts of AASB 127 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements dealing with the accounting
for consolidated financial statements and UIG-112
Consolidation – Special Purpose Entities.

Application
Date of
Standard

Impact on Group
Financial Report

Application
Date for Group

1 January
2013

The Group is yet
to assess the
impact

1 April 2013

1 January
2013

The Group is yet
to assess the
impact

1 April 2013

1 January
2013

The Group is yet
to assess the
impact

The new control model broadens the situations when an
entity is considered to be controlled by another entity and
includes new guidance for applying the model to specific
situations, including when acting as a manager may give
control, the impact of potential voting rights and when
holding less than a majority voting rights may give control.
Consequential amendments were also made to other
standards via AASB 2011-7.
AASB 11

Joint
Arrangements

AASB 11 replaces AASB 131 Interests in Joint Ventures and
UIG-113 Jointly- controlled Entities – Non-monetary
Contributions by Ventures. AASB 11 uses the principle of
control in AASB 10 to define joint control, and therefore the
determination of whether joint control exists may change.
In addition it removes the option to account for jointly
controlled entities (JCEs) using proportionate consolidation.
Instead, accounting for a joint arrangement is dependent
on the nature of the rights and obligations arising from the
arrangement. Joint operations that give the venturers a
right to the underlying assets and obligations themselves is
accounted for by recognising the share of those assets and
obligations. Joint ventures that give the venturers a right to
the net assets is accounted for using the equity method.
Consequential amendments were also made to other
standards via AASB 2011-7, AASB 2010-10 and amendments
to AASB 128.

AASB 12

Disclosure of
Interests in Other
Entities

AASB 12 includes all disclosures relating to an entity’s
interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and
structures entities. New disclosures have been introduced
about the judgments made by management to determine
whether control exists, and to require summarised
information about joint arrangements, associates and
structured entities and subsidiaries with non-controlling
interests.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(c) New Accounting Standards and Interpretations (continued)

Reference

Title

AASB 13

Fair Value
Measurement

Summary

AASB 13 establishes a single source of guidance for
determining the fair value of assets and liabilities. AASB 13
does not change when an entity is required to use fair
value, but rather, provides guidance on how to determine
fair value when fair value is required or permitted.
Application of this definition may result in different fair
values being determined for the relevant assets.

Application
Date of
Standard

Impact on Group
Financial Report

Application
Date for Group

1 January
2013

The Group is yet
to assess the
impact

1 April 2013

1 January
2013

The Group is yet
to assess the
impact

1 July 2013

1 January
2013

The Group is yet
to assess the
impact

1 April 2013

AASB 13 also expands the disclosure requirements for all
assets or liabilities carried at fair value. This includes
information about the assumptions made and the
qualitative impact of those assumptions on the fair value
determined.
Consequential amendments were also made to other
standards via AASB 2011-8.
AASB 119

Employee Benefits

The main change introduced by this standard is to revise
the accounting for defined benefit plans. The amendment
removes the options for accounting for the liability, and
requires that the liabilities arising from such plans is
recognized in full with actuarial gains and losses being
recognized in other comprehensive income. It also revised
the method of calculating the return on plan assets.
The revised standard changes the definition of short-term
employee benefits. The distinction between short-term and
other long-term employee benefits is now based on
whether the benefits are expected to be settled wholly
within 12 months after the reporting date.
Consequential amendments were also made to other
standards via AASB 2011-10.

AASB 20122

Amendments to
Australian
Accounting
Standards Disclosures Offsetting
Financial Assets
and Financial
Liabilities

AASB 2012-2 principally amends AASB 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures to require disclosure of
information that will enable users of an entity's financial
statements to evaluate the effect or potential effect of
netting arrangements, including rights of set-off associated
with the entity's recognised financial assets and recognised
financial liabilities, on the entity's financial position.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(c) New Accounting Standards and Interpretations (continued)

Application
Date of
Standard

Impact on Group
Financial Report

Application
Date for Group

1 January
2013

The Group is yet
to assess the
impact

1 April 2013

AASB 2012-9 amends AASB 1048 Interpretation of
Standards to evidence the withdrawal of Australian
Interpretation 1039 Substantive Enactment of Major Tax
Bills in Australia.

1 January
2013

The Group is yet
to assess the
impact

1 April 2013

AASB 2012-10 amends the following standards:
►
AASB 10 Consolidation and related standards clarifies the transition guidance, in particular
that the assessment of control is to be made at
the beginning of the period AASB 10 is adopted
rather that prior periods.
►
AASB 10 and related standards to defer the
mandatory application by not-for-profit entities
to annual reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2014.

1 January
2013

The Group is yet
to assess the
impact

1 April 2013

1 January
2014

The Group is yet
to assess the
impact

1 April 2014

Reference

Title

Summary

AASB 20125

Amendments to
Australian
Accounting
Standards arising
from Annual
Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle

AASB 2012-5 makes amendments resulting from the 20092011 Annual Improvements Cycle. The standard addresses
a range of improvements, including the following:
► Repeat application of AASB 1 is permitted (AASB 1)
Clarification of the comparative information requirements
when an entity provides a third balance sheet (AASB 101
Presentation of Financial Statements).

AASB 20129

Amendment to
AASB 1048 arising
from the
withdrawal of
Australian
Interpretation
1039

AASB 201210

Amendments to
Australian
Accounting
Standards –
Transition
Guidance and
Other
Amendments

Various editorial amendments to a range of Australian
Accounting Standards and to Interpretation 12 Service
Concession Arrangements, to reflect changes made to the
text of IFRSs by the IASB
AASB 20123

Amendments to
Australian
Accounting
Standards Offsetting
Financial Assets
and Financial
Liabilities

AASB 2012-3 adds application guidance to AASB 132
Financial Instruments: Presentation to address
inconsistencies identified in applying some of the offsetting
criteria of AASB 132, including clarifying the meaning of
"currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off" and
that some gross settlement systems may be considered
equivalent to net settlement.

(d) Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Neptune Marine Services Limited and its subsidiaries [as outlined in note 29(a)] as at
and for the nine month period ended 31 March in the current year and a twelve month period in the prior year ended 30 June.
Subsidiaries are all those entities over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from their activities.
The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether a Group controls another
entity.
The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the parent company, using consistent accounting policies. In preparing
the consolidated financial statements, all intercompany balances, transactions, unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends
have been eliminated in full.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(d) Basis of consolidation (continued)
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is obtained by the Group and cease to be consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred out of the Group.
Investments in subsidiaries held by Neptune Marine Services Limited are accounted for at cost in the separate financial statements of the parent entity less any
impairment charges. Dividends received from subsidiaries are recorded as a component of other revenues in the separate income statement of the parent
entity, and do not impact the recorded cost of the investment. Upon receipt of dividend payments from subsidiaries, the parent will assess whether any
indicators of impairment of the carrying value of the investment in the subsidiary exist. Where such indicators exist, to the extent that the carrying value of the
investment exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting. The acquisition method of accounting involves recognising at
acquisition date, separately from goodwill, the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed and any non-controlling interest in the acquiree. The
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are measured at their acquisition date fair values [see note 2(e)].
The difference between the above items and the fair value of the consideration (including the fair value of any pre-existing investment in the acquiree) is
goodwill or a discount on acquisition.
After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquire are assigned to those units.
Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit disposal of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed
of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance
is measured based on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary that does not result in a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.
If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary

Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest

Derecognises the cumulative translation differences, recorded in equity

Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in other comprehensive income to the profit or loss, or retained earnings, as
appropriate.
(e) Business Combinations
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred,
measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether
it measures the non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition
costs incurred are expensed and included in administrative expenses.
When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts by the acquiree.
If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to
fair value at the acquisition date through profit or loss.
Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of
the contingent consideration which is deemed to be an asset or liability will be recognised in accordance with AASB 139 either in profit or loss or as a change to
other comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is classified as equity it will not be remeasured. Subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. In instances where the contingent consideration does not fall within the scope of AASB 139, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate AASB.
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling interest
over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If this consideration is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the
difference is recognised in profit or loss.
After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.
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(e) Business Combinations (continued)
Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this
circumstance is measured based on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
(f) Goodwill
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling interest
over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If this consideration is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the
difference is recognised in profit or loss.
After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.
Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this
circumstance is measured based on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
(g) Foreign Currency Translation
The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is also the parent company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. The
Group has elected to recycle the gain or loss that arises from the direct method of consolidation, which is the method the Group uses to complete its
consolidation.
The functional currencies of the company’s subsidiaries are as follows:
Australia
Asia and Middle East
United Kingdom

AUD
USD
GBP

(i)
Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group entities at their respective functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first
qualifies for recognition.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency spot rate of exchange at the reporting date.
All differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are taken to the income statement with the exception of monetary items that are
designated as part of the hedge of the Group’s net investment of a foreign operation. These are recognised in other comprehensive income until the net
investment is disposed, at which time, the cumulative amount is reclassified to the income statement. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange
differences on those monetary items are also recorded in other comprehensive income.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is
determined. The gain or loss arising on retranslation of non-monetary items is treated in line with the recognition of gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).
(ii)
Group companies
On consolidation the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into AUD at the rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their income
statements are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. The exchange differences arising on translation for consolidation are
recognised in other comprehensive income. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the income statement.
(h) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns, trade discounts or volume rebates. Revenue is recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured.
Revenue from the rendering of a service is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of a contract or contracts in progress at reporting date or at the
time of completion of the contract and billing to the customer.
Stage of completion is measured by reference to labour hours and costs incurred to date as a percentage of total estimated labour hours and costs for each
contract which is determined by a set quotation with the customer.
When the contract outcome cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.
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(h) Revenue Recognition (continued)
Interest revenue is recognised on a proportional basis taking into account the interest rates applicable to the financial assets.
Licence fee revenue is recognised on an accruals basis when the Group has the right to receive payment under the relevant agreement and has performed its
obligations.
(i) Operating Segments
An operating segment is a component of an entity that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses (including revenues
and expenses relating to transactions with other components of the same entity), whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity's chief operating
decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance and for which discrete financial information is
available. This includes start-up operations which are yet to earn revenues. Management will also consider other factors in determining operating segments such
as the level of segment information presented to the Board of Directors.
Operating segments have been identified based on the information provided to the chief operating decision makers — being the CEO.
The Group aggregates two or more operating segments when they have similar economic characteristics, and the segments are similar in each of the following
respects:

Nature of the products and services

Nature of the production processes

Type or class of customer for the products and services

Methods used to distribute the products or provide the services, and if applicable

Nature of the regulatory environment
Operating segments that meet the quantitative criteria as prescribed by AASB 8 are reported separately. However, an operating segment that does not meet the
quantitative criteria is still reported separately where information about the segment would be useful to users of the financial statements.
Information about other business activities and operating segments that are below the quantitative criteria are combined and disclosed in a separate category
for “all other segments”.
(j) Government grants
Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached conditions will be complied with. When
the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income over the period necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended
to compensate. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as deferred income and released to income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of
the related asset.
When the Group receives non-monetary grants, the asset and the grant are recorded gross at nominal amounts and released to the income statement over the
expected useful life and pattern of consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset by equal annual instalments. When loans or similar assistance are
provided by governments or related institutions with an interest rate below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this favourable interest is regarded
as additional government grants.
(k) Income Tax and Other Taxes
Current tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities based on
the current period's taxable income. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.
Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity and not in the income statement. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate.
Deferred income tax is provided on all temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.
Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences except:



When the deferred income tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and that, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss
In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

NEPTUNE MARINE SERVICES LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN: 76 105 665 843

35

2013 FINANCIAL REPORT
Note 2

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(k) Income Tax and Other Taxes (continued)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry-forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:
•

•

When the deferred income tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss
In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred
tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred income tax assets are reassessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. Deferred
income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate recognition at that date, would be recognised subsequently if
new information about facts and circumstances changed. The adjustment would either be treated as a reduction to goodwill (as long as it does not exceed
goodwill) if it was incurred during the measurement period or in profit or loss.
Tax consolidation legislation
Neptune Marine Services Limited and its wholly-owned Australian controlled entities implemented the tax consolidation legislation as of 1 July 2009.
The head entity, Neptune Marine Services Limited and the controlled entities in the tax consolidated Group continue to account for their own current and
deferred tax amounts. The Group has applied the Group allocation approach in determining the appropriate amount of current taxes and deferred taxes to
allocate to members of the tax consolidated Group.
In addition to its own current and deferred tax amounts, Neptune Marine Services Limited also recognises the current tax liabilities (or assets) and the deferred
tax assets arising from unused tax losses and unused tax credits assumed from controlled entities in the tax consolidated group.
Assets or liabilities arising under tax funding agreements with the tax consolidated entities are recognised as amounts receivable from or payable to other
entities in the Group. Details of the tax funding agreement are disclosed in note 8.
Any difference between the amounts assumed and amounts receivable or payable under the tax funding agreement are recognised as a contribution to (or
distribution from) wholly-owned tax consolidated entities.
Other taxes
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST except:
•
•

When the GST incurred on a purchase of goods and services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case the GST is recognised
as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable
Receivables and payables, which are stated with the amount of GST included

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the statement of financial
position.
Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis and the GST component of cash flows arising from investing and financing activities,
which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is classified as part of operating cash flows.
Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority.
(l) Non-Current Assets and Disposal Groups Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Non-current
assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset or disposal group is available for immediate sale in its
present condition. Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from
the date of classification.
In the statement of comprehensive income, income and expenses from discontinued operations are reported separately from income and expenses from
continuing operations, down to the level of profit after taxes, even when the Group retains a non-controlling interest in the subsidiary after the sale. The
resulting profit or loss (after taxes) is reported separately in the statement of comprehensive income.
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortised.
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(m) Property, Plant and Equipment
Each class of property, plant and equipment is historical carried at cost less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses.
Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment are measured on the cost basis. The carrying amount of plant and equipment is reviewed annually by Directors to ensure it is not in excess
of the recoverable amount from these assets. The recoverable amount is assessed on the basis of the expected net cash flows that will be generated from the
use of the assets employment and subsequent disposal. The expected net cash flows have been discounted to their present values in determining recoverable
amounts.
Depreciation
The depreciable amount of all fixed assets including building and capitalised lease assets, is depreciated on a diminishing value basis over their useful lives to the
consolidated group commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of either the unexpired
period of the lease or the estimated useful lives of the improvements.
The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets are:
Class of Fixed Asset

Depreciation Rate

Office furniture, equipment and software
Leasehold Improvements
Plant and equipment
Leased Vehicles
Remotely Operated Vehicles (ROV's) and Vessels

25% - 33%
20% - 33%
20% - 40%
20%
5-10%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These gains and losses are included in the income statement.
Depreciation rates and methods have been reviewed during the period, going forward all assets will be depreciated under the straight line method; this will be
accounted for as a change in accounting estimate. The net written down value of the asset will be depreciated from the date of the change in accordance with
the new depreciation rate or method. Depreciation recognised in prior financial years will not be changed, that is, the change in depreciation rate or method will
be accounted for on a ‘prospective’ basis.
(n) Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at inception date, whether fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that right is not explicitly specified
in an arrangement.
For arrangements entered into prior to 1 January 2005, the date of inception is deemed to be 1 January 2005 in accordance with the transitional requirements
of AASB Int 4.
(i) Group as a lessee
Finance leases that transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalised at the commencement
of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between
finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are
recognised in finance costs in the income statement.
A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the
lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.
Operating lease payments are recognised as an operating expense in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
(o) Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing costs consist
of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Neptune Marine Services Limited does not currently hold qualifying
assets but, if it did, the borrowing costs directly associated with this asset would be capitalised (including any other associated costs directly attributable to the
borrowing and the temporary investment income earned on the borrowing).
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(p) Intangible Assets
Research and development
Research costs
demonstrate:






are expensed as incurred. Development expenditures on an individual project are recognised as an intangible asset when the Group can
The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale
Its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset
How the asset will generate future economic benefits
The availability of resources to complete the asset
The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortised over the period of expected
future benefit. Amortisation is recorded in technical expenses. During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.
(q) Financial Instruments – Initial Recognition and Subsequent Measurement
i) Financial assets
Initial recognition and Measurement
Financial assets within the scope of AASB 139 are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
investments, available-for-sale financial assets, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs, except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way
trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
The Group’s financial assets include cash and short-term deposits, and trade and other receivables.
Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as described below:
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial
measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method, less impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in
the income statement. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the income statement in finance costs for loans and in cost of sales or other
operating expenses for receivables.
Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:
The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired.
The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a ”pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent
it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to
the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
ii) Impairment of financial assets
The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ”loss event”) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation and when observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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(q) Financial instruments – Initial Recognition and Subsequent Measurement (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the assets’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have not yet been incurred).
The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current EIR.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement. Interest
income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as part of finance income in the income statement. Loans together with the associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the Group. If, in a
subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is
credited to finance costs in the income statement.
iii) Financial liabilities
Initial Recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities within the scope of AASB 139 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of loans and borrowings, directly attributable transaction costs. The Group’s financial
liabilities include trade and other payables and loans and borrowings.
Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, described as follows:
Loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognised in the income statement when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included in finance costs in the income statement.
Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.
(r) Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition is accounted for
as follows:
Raw materials:

Purchase cost on a first in, first out basis
Finished goods and work in progress:

Cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity but excluding borrowing costs
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.
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(s) Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash generating
units (CGU) fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair
value less costs to sell, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is
used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or other available fair value indicators.
The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the Group’s CGUs to which
the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years.
For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.
Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the income statement in expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset, except for a property previously revalued and the revaluation was taken to other comprehensive income. In this case, the
impairment is also recognised in other comprehensive income up to the amount of any previous revaluation.
For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date whether there is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the assets or CGUs recoverable amount. A previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss
was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the income
statement unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.
The following assets have specific characteristics for impairment testing:
Goodwill
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually (as at 31 March) and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or group of CGUs) to which the goodwill relates. When the
recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in
future periods
Intangible assets
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually as at 31 December either individually or at the CGU level, as appropriate, and
when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
(t) Cash and Short-Term Deposits
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less.
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits as defined above, net of outstanding bank
overdrafts.
(u) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Group
expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only
when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the income statement net of any reimbursement.
Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at reporting date.
Wages, salaries, annual leave and non-monetary benefits
Provision is made for the company’s liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by employees to balance date. Employee benefits that are due
to be settled within one year have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled, plus related on-costs.
Employee benefits payable later than one year have been measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made for those benefits.
Long service leave
The liability for long service leave is recognised and measured as the present value of expected future payment to be made in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of
employee departures, and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the reporting date on national government bonds
with terms to maturity and currencies that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(v) Share-Based Payment Transactions
Employees (including senior executives) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions).
Equity-settled transactions
The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in other capital reserves in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at
each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The income statement expense or credit for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period and is recognised in employee benefits expense (Note 7c).
No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for equity-settled a transaction for which vesting is conditional upon a market or nonvesting condition. These are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.
When the terms of an equity-settled transaction award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the expense as if the terms had not been modified, if
the original terms of the award are met. An additional expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share based payment
transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification.
When an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non vesting conditions within the control of either the entity or the employee are not met. However, if a new award
is substituted for the cancelled award, and designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the previous paragraph.
The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share
Note 3

Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability
affected in future periods.
(i)
Significant Accounting Judgements
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:
Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill and indefinite life intangibles
The Group assesses impairment of all assets at each reporting date by evaluating conditions specific to the Group and to the particular asset that may lead to
impairment. These include product and manufacturing performance, technology, economic and political environments and future product expectations. If an
impairment trigger exists the recoverable amount of the asset is determined. Given the current uncertain economic environment management considered that
the indicators of impairment were significant enough and as such these assets have been tested for impairment in this financial period.
Taxation
The Group's accounting policy for taxation requires management's judgement as to the types of arrangements considered to be a tax on income in contrast to an
operating cost. Judgement is also required in assessing whether deferred tax assets and certain deferred tax liabilities are recognised on the statement of
financial position. Deferred tax assets, including those arising from unrecouped tax losses, capital losses and temporary differences, are recognised only where it
is considered more likely than not that they will be recovered, which is dependent on the generation of sufficient future taxable profits. Deferred tax liabilities
arising from temporary differences in investments, caused principally by retained earnings held in foreign tax jurisdictions, are recognised unless repatriation of
retained earnings can be controlled and are not expected to occur in the foreseeable future.
Assumptions about the generation of future taxable profits and repatriation of retained earnings depend on management's estimates of future cash flows. These
depend on estimates of future production and sales volumes, operating costs, restoration costs, capital expenditure, dividends and other capital management
transactions. Judgements are also required about the application of income tax legislation. These judgements and assumptions are subject to risk and
uncertainty, hence there is a possibility that changes in circumstances will alter expectations, which may impact the amount of deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities recognised on the statement of financial position and the amount of other tax losses and temporary differences not yet recognised. In such
circumstances, some or all of the carrying amounts of recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities may require adjustment, resulting in a corresponding credit
or charge to the statement of comprehensive income.
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Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions (continued)

(ii)
Significant Accounting Estimates and Assumptions
Impairment of goodwill and intangibles with indefinite useful lives
The Group determines whether goodwill and intangibles with indefinite useful lives are impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating units, using a value in use discounted cash flow methodology, to which the goodwill and intangibles with indefinite
useful lives are allocated. An impairment loss of $ 16.515 million (2012: $35 million) was recognised in the current period in respect of goodwill. The assumptions
used in this estimation of recoverable amount and the carrying amount of goodwill and intangibles with indefinite useful lives including a sensitivity analysis are
discussed in note 19.
Share-based payment transactions
The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is determined with the assistance of an external valuer using an option pricing model. The related assumptions are detailed in note 31.
The accounting estimates and assumptions relating to equity-settled share-based payments would have no impact on the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next annual reporting period but may impact expenses and equity.
Estimation of useful lives of assets
The estimation of the useful lives of assets has been based on historical experience as well as manufacturers' warranties (for plant and equipment), lease terms
(for leased equipment) and turnover policies (for motor vehicles). In addition, the condition of the assets is assessed at least once per year and considered
against the remaining useful life. Adjustments to useful lives are made when considered necessary.
Depreciation charges are included in note 18.
Note 4

Financial Risk Management

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise receivables, payables, bank loans and finance facilities, finance leases, hire purchases, cash and short-term
deposits.
Risk Exposures and Responses
The Group manages its exposure to key financial risks, including interest rate and currency risk in accordance with the Group’s financial risk management policy.
The objective of the policy is to support the delivery of the Group’s financial targets while protecting future financial security.
As various times the Group entered into derivative transactions, principally forward currency contracts. The purpose is to manage the interest rate and currency
risks arising from the Group’s operations and its sources of finance. Derivatives classified as held for trading relating to forward currency contracts provided
economic hedges, but did not qualify for hedge accounting and were based on limits set by the Board. The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group uses different methods to measure and manage different types of
risks to which it is exposed. These include monitoring levels of exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange risk and assessments of market forecasts for
interest rate and foreign exchange. Ageing analyses and monitoring of specific credit allowances are undertaken to manage credit risk. Liquidity risk is monitored
through the development of future rolling cash flow forecasts.
The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks as summarised below.
Primary responsibility for identification and control of financial risks rests with the Group Finance department under the authority of the Board. The Board
provides principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit allowances, and
future cash flow forecast projections.
The Group hold the following financial instruments:

Consolidated
2013

2012

$000

$000

9,741

7,786

-

736

Trade and other receivables

26,779

27,730

Total

36,520

36,252

21,125

14,775

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Loan to US ( promissory note)

Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables
Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Total
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Financial Risk Management (continued)
Interest Rate Risk

Cash and cash equivalents
The Group held its cash reserves on deposit and in cheque accounts during the period, which earned interest at rates ranging between 0% and 8.50% (2012: 0%
and 5.80%) depending on account balances.
Other than cash and other short term deposits, all the Group’s financial assets are non-interest bearing.
Interest bearing liabilities
Interest bearing liabilities are comprised of hire purchase agreements of $267,000 (2012: $331,000), other finance arrangements of $11,000 (2012: $1,359,000).
Other than the hire purchase agreements, bank loans and other finance arrangements, all the Group’s financial liabilities are non-interest bearing.
The following sets out the Group’s exposure to variable interest rate risk, including the effective average interest rate by maturity periods.
Consolidated
Average
Interest Rate

2013
$000

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

9,741

Financial liabilities
Hire Purchase agreements

10.86%

Other finance arrangements *

9.75%

(267)
(11)
9,463

Average
Interest Rate

2012
$000

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

7,786

Financial Liabilities
Hire Purchase agreements

12.66%

(398)

Debtors Facility

8.18%

(415)

Other finance arrangements *

5.83%

(877)
6,096

* Other finance arrangements includes insurance funding arrangements and ERP system
The Group’s mix of financial assets and liabilities are exposed to Australian, United Kingdom and United States of America variable interest rate risk determined
by local financial institutions.
As at 31 March 2013, if interest rates had changed by +/- 100 basis points from the year end rates with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit/(loss) for
the period would have been $55,000 higher/lower (2012: $52,000). This would be a result of higher/lower interest revenue on deposits and higher/lower
interest expense on borrowings.
(ii)
Foreign Currency Risk
The consolidated entity is exposed to foreign currency on sales, purchases, investments, and other borrowings that are denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily US Dollars and GB Pounds.
The Group uses foreign currency denominated borrowings and foreign exchange forward contracts to manage some of its transaction exposures. The foreign
exchange forward contracts are not designated as cash flow hedges and are entered into for periods consistent with foreign exposure of the underlying
transactions, generally from one to 24 months. With regard to other foreign currency transactions, generally there is no need to manage currencies as there is a
corresponding asset or liability which will offset any foreign currency risk.
The financial instruments exposed to movements in the GBP are:

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables

Consolidated
2013

2012

$000

$000

25

770

-

39

Trade and other payables

(52)

(4)

Net exposure

(27)

805
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Financial Risk Management (continued)

(ii) Foreign Currency Risk (continued)
Consolidated
The financial instruments exposed to movements in the USD are:

$000

Cash and cash equivalents

1,258

536

782

1,864

Trade and other receivables

$000

Trade and other payables

(738)

(317)

Net exposure

1,302

2,083

As at 31 March 2013, the post-tax profit of the consolidated entity would change by the following amounts as a result of movements in different exchange rate:
-

if the AUD had strengthened/weakened by 10% against the GBP, post-tax impact on changes in equity for the period would have been $1,185
lower/higher.
if the AUD had strengthened/weakened by 10% against the USD, post-tax profit for the period would have been $87,051 lower/higher

As at 30 June 2012, the post-tax profit of the consolidated entity would change by the following amounts as a result of movements in different exchange rates:
-

if the AUD had strengthened/weakened by 10% against the GBP, post-tax impact on changes in equity for the period would have been $56,334
lower/higher.
if the AUD had strengthened/weakened by 10% against the USD, post-tax profit for the period would have been $145,883 lower/higher.

(iii)
Credit Risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the consolidated entity. Certain businesses
within the consolidated entity are largely reliant on a small number of customers which increases the concentration of credit risk. However, the consolidated
entity’s customers are weighted towards large reputable clients.
Credit risk is managed through the credit approval process instigated by management at head office and by monitoring counterparties periodically.
The breakdown of trade debtors by currency and aging is included below (balances are in foreign denominated currency):
Consolidated
Current

Past due but not impaired

Past due and
impaired

Total

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

0 - 60 days

61 - 90 days

90 + days

12,109

2,669

981

240

15,999

United States Dollars

3,548

669

1,429

1,285

6,931

Great British Pounds

2,425

191

244

-

2,860

Individual Currency
Australian Dollars

Consolidated
Current
Australian Dollar Equivalent
Australian Dollars
United States Dollars
Great British Pounds

Past due but not impaired

Past due and
impaired

Total

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

0 - 60 days

61 - 90 days

90 + days

12,109

2,669

981

240

15,999

3,403

641

1,370

1,232

6,646

3,520

277

354

-

4,151

19,032

3,587

2,705

1,472

26,796

The majority of the balances held in USD and GBP are held in entities with those respective functional currencies. Therefore there is minimal foreign currency
risk.
(iv)
Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the inability to access funds, both anticipated and unforeseen, which may lead to the Group being unable to meet its obligations in an orderly
manner as they arise.
The Group's liquidity position is managed to ensure sufficient funds are available to meet financial commitments in a timely and cost-effective manner. The
Group is primarily funded through on-going cash flow, debt funding and equity capital raisings, as and when required.
Management regularly monitors actual and forecast cash flows to manage liquidity risk.
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Financial Risk Management (continued)

(iv) Liquidity Risk (continued)
Financial Instruments
The table below reflects the timing of repayments of recognised financial liabilities at 31 March 2013. As such, the amounts may not reconcile to the balance
sheet.
Within Year

1 to 5 years

$000
2013

Total

$000
2012

2013

$000
2012

2013

2012

Financial Liabilities:
Debtors facility
Trade and sundry payables

-

415

-

-

-

415

21,125

14,775

-

-

21,125

14,775

Lease liabilities and other

114

1,046

164

229

278

1,275

Total Financial Liabilities

21,239

16,236

164

229

21,403

16,465

Note 5

Operating Segments

Identification of Reportable Segments
The Group has identified its operating segments based on the internal reports that are reviewed and used by the CEO (the chief operating decision maker) in
assessing performance and in determining the allocation of resources.
The operating segments are identified by management based on the nature of the services provided to customers. Discrete financial information about each of
these operating businesses is reported to the CEO on at least a monthly basis.
Types of Products and Services
The reportable segments are based on aggregated operating segments determined by the similarity of the products produced and sold and/or services provided,
as these are the sources of the Group’s major risks and have the most effective on the rates of return.
Neptune Marine Services comprises the two distinct divisions of Offshore Services and Engineering Services. Globally, the company has operational bases in
Australia, South East Asia, Qatar, and the United Kingdom. The services provided to customers are on an offshore and engineering basis and can combine
services from multiple regions.
Offshore Services
The Offshore Services division provides the oil and gas, marine and associated industries with a range of specialised services, including commercial diving;
inspection, repair and maintenance support; difficult and confined area access via rope access, tension netting and modular platforms; remotely operated
vehicles (ROVs); subsea pipeline/cable stabilisation and protection; hydro graphic surveying, positioning and geophysical support; and project management.
Engineering Services
The Engineering Services division provides the oil and gas, marine, renewable energy and associated industries with a range of specialised services, including
subsea and pipeline engineering; fabrication; assembly and testing; refurbishment; installation; maintenance; the patented NEPSYS® dry underwater welding
technology; and project management.
Accounting Policies and Inter-Segment Transactions
The accounting policies used by the Group in reporting segments internally is the same as those contained in note 2 to the accounts and in the prior period
except as detailed below:
Inter-entity sales
Inter-entity sales are recognised based on an internally set transfer price. The price aims to reflect what the business operation could achieve if they sold their
output and services to external parties at arm's length.
Corporate charges
Corporate charges compromise non–segmental expenses such as head office expenses and interest. Corporate charges are allocated to each business segment
on a proportionate basis linked to segment revenue so as to determine a segmental result.
It is the Group's policy that if items of revenue and expense are not allocated to operating segments then any associated assets and liabilities are also not
allocated to segments. This is to avoid asymmetrical allocations within segments which management believe would be inconsistent.

NEPTUNE MARINE SERVICES LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN: 76 105 665 843

45

2013 FINANCIAL REPORT
Note 5

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Operating Segments (continued)

Unallocated items
The following items and associated assets and liabilities are not allocated to operating segments as they are not considered part of the core operations of any
segment:
●
Finance costs
●
Corporate, shared service and Board expenses
●
Technical expenses
●
Share-based payments
●
Foreign exchange gain/ (loss)
●
Deferred tax assets
Major Customers
The Group has a number of customers to which it provides its services. Approximately 27% or $23,807,000 (2012: 8.9% or $10,278,000) arose from the sale to
the Group’s two largest customers. These revenues were included in the offshore division segment. No other single customer contributed 10% or more to the
Group’s revenue for both 2013 and 2012.
The following table presents revenue and profit information for reportable segments for the 9 month period ended 31 March 2013 and 12 month period ended
30 June 2012.
Continuing Operations
Engineering

9 month period ended 31 March 2013

Offshore Services

Total

9 Months
2013

12 Months
2012

9 Months
2013

12 Months
2012

9 Months
2013

12 Months
2012

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

18,233

21,582

69,301

94,670

87,534

116,252

7,608

8,221

9,724

12,238

17,332

20,459

-

4

93

136

93

140

25,841

29,807

79,118

107,044

104,959

136,851

(17,332)

(20,405)

87,627

116,446

Revenue
Sales to external customers
Intersegment sales
Other revenue
Total sales revenue

Internal sales elimination

Total revenue per the income statement
Result
Segment result before impairments, asset write downs and
items below:
Impairment of Goodwill

2,487

(430)

6,670

14,781

9,157

14,351

(1,482)

-

(15,033)

(34,959)

(16,515)

(34,959)

1,005

(430)

(8,363)

(20,178)

(7,358)

(20,608)

Segment results after impairment and before items below:
Reconciliation of segment net profit before tax to net profit before tax
Finance costs

(304)

(107)

(8,175)

(11,945)

Technical expenses

(189)

(254)

Share-based payments

(738)

(2)

Unallocated Corporate, shared services and Board expenses

Foreign exchange loss
Net loss from continuing operations before tax per the income statement
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Operating Segments (continued)
Continuing Operations
Engineering

Offshore Services

Total

2013

2012

2013

2012

2013

2012

Segment assets

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

Segment operating assets

7,825

15,237

70,348

58,794

78,173

74,031

Goodwill

3,184

4,851

8,975

23,931

12,159

28,782

11,009

20,088

79,323

82,725

90,332

102,813

-

445

Segment assets

Reconciliation of segment assets to the statement of financial position
Current tax assets
Deferred tax assets
Total assets from continuing operations per the statement of financial position

2,677

2,746

93,009

106,004

Entity Wide Information
Revenue from external customers by geographical locations is detailed below:
Segment Revenues from External
Customers
9 Months
12 Months
2013
2012
$000
$000

Carrying Amount of
Total Assets
2013
$000

2012
$000

Australia - country of domicile

61,047

76,411

61,029

62,482

Asia and Middle East

11,115

14,601

12,019

13,983

-

-

-

1,177

15,372

25,434

19,961

28,362

87,534

116,446

93,009

106,004

United States of America
United Kingdom

Note 6

Revenue & Other Income
Consolidated Group

a)

12 Months
2012

$000

$000

87,534

116,306

93

140

87,627

116,446

77

30

77

30

Revenue
—

Rendering of services revenue from operating activities

—

Other revenue - interest received

Total Revenue
b)

9 Months
2013

Other Income
—

Rent/other income

Total Other Income

Note 7

Expenses
Consolidated Group

a)

Finance costs:
—

Interest to unrelated parties

Total finance costs
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Expenses (continued)
Consolidated Group
9 Months
2013
$000

b)

(i)

Included in cost of sales

—

Depreciation

(ii)

Included in administrative expenses

—
—

2,398

3,233

Depreciation

468

691

Amortisation

176

235

Total depreciation and amortisation

25,723

—

superannuation

1,231

1,970

—

other

1,259

1,413

20,368

29,106

Included in Administrative Expenses
—

salaries and wages

11,363

15,428

—

superannuation

889

1,167

—

employee entitlements

432

1,298

—

share based payments

334

2

—

other

Total
Total Employee benefit expenses

g)

17,878

Included in Cost of Sales
salaries and wages

ii)

f)

926
4,159

—

Total

e)

644
3,042

Employee benefit expenses:
i)

d)

$000

Depreciation, impairment (excluding goodwill) and amortisation:

Total

c)

12 Months
2012

1,480

3,118

14,498

21,013

34,866

50,119

Corporate, shared service and Board expenses
—

Administrative costs

1,829

2,977

—

Personnel expenses

3,080

8,692

—

Depreciation expense

242

406

5,151

12,075

Business operating expenses
—

Administrative costs

3,071

4,506

—

Personnel expenses

11,823

12,321

—

Depreciation expense

—

Other

226

286

2,594

2,105

17,714

19,218

385

Other expenses
—

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

780

—

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment

318

-

—

Other

158

159

1,256

544

973

(35)

610

628

1,583

593

Other items included in the income statement
—

Bad and doubtful debts

—

Repairs and maintenance
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Expenses (continued)
Consolidated Group
9 Months
2013
$000

h)

12 Months
2012
$000

Takeover related costs
—

Legal Costs

183

-

—

Secretarial and Accounting

600

-

—

Accelerated share based payment

404

-

1,187

-

Note 8

Income Tax
Consolidated Group

(a)

9 Months
2013
$000

12 Months
2012
$000

Current income tax charge

1,479

1,431

Adjustments in respect of current income tax or previous years

(114)

(1,200)

(910)

272

455

503

(403)

(557)

403

557

-

-

(16,865)

(33,092)

(75)

(6,332)

(16,940)

(39,424)

(5,082)

(11,827)

Adjustments in respect of prior years

(507)

(1,328)

Foreign tax rate adjustment

1,063

782

Deferred tax not recognised

144

550

94

189

221

1

Income Tax Expense
The major components of income tax expense are:
Current income tax

Deferred tax
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences
Income tax expense reported in the statement of comprehensive income
(b)

Amounts charged or credited directly to equity
Current income tax relating to items charged (credited) directly to equity
Capital raising costs
Deferred income tax relating to items charged (credited) directly to equity
Capital raising costs
Income tax expense reported in equity

(c)

Numerical reconciliation between aggregate tax expense recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income and tax expense calculated per statutory income tax rate
Accounting profit before tax from continuing operations
Loss before tax from discontinued operations
Total accounting profit before tax
At Parent Entity's statutory income tax rate of 30% (2012: 30%)

Withholding tax in non-Australian jurisdictions
Share based payments
Goodwill Impairment

4,570

9,856

Other

(48)

2,280

Aggregate income tax expense

455

503

Continuing operations

472

702

Discontinued operations

(17)

(199)

455

503

Aggregated income tax expense is attributed to:
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Income Tax (continued)
2013
$000

2013
$000

2012
$000

2012
$000

Current
Tax

Deferred
Tax

Current
Tax

Deferred
Tax

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
Opening Balance

306

1,414

1,003

2,231

(1,365)

910

(231)

(272)

Charged to equity

403

(403)

557

(557)

Payments / receipts

300

-

(1,018)

-

Acquisition / Disposals

-

-

-

-

Not previously recognised

-

-

-

-

Other Adjustment

9

(44)

(5)

(36)

(347)

1,877

306

1,366

Charged to income statement

Closing balance
Amounts recognised in the statement of financial position:
Deferred tax asset

2,677

2,746

Deferred tax liability

(800)

(1,380)

1,877

1,366

Statement of financial position
2013
2012
$000
$000
Deferred tax at 31 March relates to the following:
(i) Deferred tax liabilities
Property, Plant and Equipment
Goodwill
Prepayments
Foreign Exchange
Other

1,663
2
673
192

2,405
35
453
522

Gross deferred tax liabilities
Set off of deferred tax assets

2,530
1,730

3,415
2,035

800

1,380

(ii) Deferred tax assets
Provisions
Foreign Exchange
Accruals
Transaction costs on equity issue
Unused tax losses
Borrowing Costs
Other

573
5
672
1,039
2,297
10
(189)

520
506
1,346
2,366
10
33

Gross deferred tax assets
Set off of deferred tax assets

4,407
1,730

4,781
2,035

Net deferred tax assets

2,677

2,746

9 Months
2013
$000
11,874
8,946
21,838
16,424
977
60,059

12 Months
2012
$000
887
9,396
21,635
15,793
815
153

Net deferred tax liabilities

(e)

Tax losses

Gross unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset has been recognised:
Australia
United Kingdom
US
Singapore
Qatar
Malaysia
Total unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset has been recognised
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Income Tax (continued)

(f) Unrecognised temporary differences
At 31 March 2013, there are no unrecognised temporary differences associated with the Group's investment in subsidiaries, as the Group has no liability for
additional taxation should unremitted earnings be remitted (2012: $Nil)
(g) Tax consolidation
(i) Members of the tax consolidated group and the tax sharing arrangement
Neptune Marine Services Ltd and its 100% owned Australian resident subsidiaries formed a tax consolidated group with effect from 1 July 2009. Neptune Marine
Services Ltd is the head entity of the tax consolidated group. Members of The Group have entered into a tax sharing agreement that provides for the allocation
of income tax liabilities between the entities should the head entity default on its tax payment obligations. No amounts have been recognised in the financial
statements in respect of this agreement on the basis that the probability of default is remote.
(ii) Tax effect account by members of the tax consolidated group
Measurement method adopted under AASB Interpretation 1052 Tax Consolidation Accounting
The head entity and the controlled entities in the tax consolidated group continue to account for their own current and deferred tax amounts. The Group has
applied The Group allocation approach in determining the appropriate amount of current taxes and deferred taxes to allocate to members of the tax
consolidated group. The current and deferred tax amounts are measured in a systematic manner that is consistent with the broad principles in AASB 112 Income
Taxes. The nature of the tax funding agreement is discussed further below.
In addition to its own current and deferred tax amounts, the head entity also recognises current tax liabilities (or assets) and the deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits assumed from controlled entities in the tax consolidated group.
Nature of tax funding agreement
Members of the tax consolidated group have entered into a tax funding arrangement. Under the funding agreement the funding of tax within the Group is based
on a standalone basis. The tax funding arrangement requires payments to/from the head entity to be recognised via an inter-entity receivable (payable) which is
at call.
Tax consolidation contributions / (distributions)
Neptune Marine Services Ltd has recognised the following amounts as tax consolidation contribution adjustments:
2013

2012

$000

$000

Total increase / (decrease) to tax payable of Neptune Marine Services Ltd

394

132

Total increase / (decrease) to intercompany assets of Neptune Marine Services Ltd

394

132

(h) Taxation of financial arrangements (TOFA)
Legislation is in place which changes the tax treatment of financial arrangements including the tax treatment of hedging transactions. No impact has been
recognised and no adjustments have been made to the deferred tax and income tax balances at 31 March 2013.
Note 9

Auditors’ Remuneration
Consolidated Group
9 Months
12 Months
2013
2012
$
$

Amounts received or due and receivable by Ernst & Young (Australia) for:
—

An audit or review of the financial report of the entity and any other entity in the consolidated Group

—

Other services in relation to the entity and any other entity in the consolidated Group
— Tax compliance

Amounts received or due and receivable by related practices of Ernst & Young (Australia) for:
—
Audit services provided by overseas Ernst & Young firm
—
Tax services provided by overseas Ernst & Young firm
—
Due Diligence Services

215,898

267,338

20,454

79,755

236,352

347,093

146,701
28,801
4,653
416,507

153,346
14,787
515,226

3,947
3,060
7,007

4,083
1,592
5,675

Amounts received or due and receivable by non-Ernst & Young audit firms for:
—
—

Taxation services
Other non-audit services
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Dividends

No dividends have been provided for or paid during the 9 months 1 July 2012 to 31 March 2013.
Note 11

Discontinued Operations

(a)
Details of Operations Disposed
The Board of Directors decided to dispose of the Australian Fabrication business and the US Diving business and publicly announced this on 1st February 2011.
Fabrication (Australia)
The performance of this business had been poor and the Board decided that it was not a business with strong growth potential or core to its other service
offerings. From an economic perspective, the business had struggled with excess local capacity in the industry and high USD/AUD exchange rate encouraging
customers to explore other options.
A Memorandum of Understanding for the sale of the fabrication business was signed on 26th September 2011 and the sale was completed by 7th October 2011
US Business
In the last financial year, the Company began the process of selling the assets of the US business. This was an outcome of a Company review where it was
decided to divest non-core or non-performing assets enabling the Company to focus on businesses which offer greater growth prospects.
On 13th February 2012 the sale was completed with the US business being sold for approximately $500,000.
(b)

Financial Performance of Operations Disposed

The results of the discontinued operations for the year until disposal are presented below:
9 Months 2013

12 Months 2012

Neptune
Fabrication
Services

Neptune
Underwater
Services

Total

Neptune
Fabrication
Services

Neptune
Underwater
Services

Total

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

Revenue

-

-

-

2,116

3,893

6,009

Cost of sales and services rendered

-

-

-

(1,960)

(2,846)

(4,806)

Gross profit

-

-

-

156

1,047

1,203

Other income

-

11

11

-

195

195

Marketing expenses

-

-

-

-

(10)

(10)

Occupancy expenses

(58)

(8)

(66)

(417)

(366)

(783)

Corporate and business administrative expenses

-

(63)

(63)

(325)

(1,138)

(1,463)

Finance costs

-

-

-

(3)

(13)

(16)

Gain/(loss) on disposal
Foreign currency Translation Reserve recycled to the
Income Statement

-

(3)

(3)

153

310

463

-

-

-

-

(5,902)

(5,902)

Other expenses

-

46

46

-

(19)

(19)

(58)

(17)

(75)

(436)

(5,896)

(6,332)

17

-

17

199

-

199

(41)

(17)

(58)

(237)

(5,896)

(6,133)

Gain/(Loss) before tax from discontinued operations
Income tax benefit
Loss for the period from discontinued operations
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Discontinued Operations (continued)
Assets & liabilities and cash flow information of disposed entity

Details of the disposal of the US diving business are:
Assets & liabilities and cash flow information of disposed entity (NUS)

Consolidated Group
2013

2012

$000

$000

Assets
Cash

-

462

Trade and other receivables

-

34

Inventories

-

11

Other current assets

-

43

Property, plant and equipment

-

78

Assets classified as held for sale

-

628

Trade and other payables

-

54

Interest bearing loans and borrowings

-

-

Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale

-

54

Net assets attributable to discontinued operations

-

574

Operating

-

353

Net cash inflow/(outflow)

-

353

Liabilities

Cash flow information - Disposed operations

Consideration received
Cash

-

940

Less net assets disposed of

-

(574)

Less disposal costs

-

(56)

Gain on disposal before income tax

-

310

Income tax expense

-

-

Gain on disposal after income tax

-

310

Assets & liabilities and cash flow information of disposed entity (NFS)
Consolidated Group
2013

2012

$000

$000

Assets
Inventories

-

100

Property, plant and equipment

-

84

Assets classified as held for sale

-

184

Provisions

-

123

Interest bearing loans and borrowings

-

-

Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale

-

123

Net assets attributable to discontinued operations

-

61

Liabilities
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Discontinued Operations (continued)

Consolidated Group

Cash flow information - Disposed operations

2013

2012

$000

$000

Operating

-

(1,678)

Net cash inflow/(outflow)

-

(1,678)

Cash

-

214

Less net assets disposed of

-

(61)

Gain on disposal before income tax

-

153

Income tax expense

-

96

Gain on disposal after income tax

-

57

Consideration received

Note 12

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net profit for the period attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent (after adjusting for interest on
the convertible preference shares) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period plus the weighted average number of
ordinary shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.
The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted earnings per share computations:

(a)

Earnings used in calculating earnings per share

For basic earnings per share
Net loss from continuing operations attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent
Loss attributable to discontinued operations
Net loss attributable to ordinary equity holder of the parent

Consolidated Group
9 Months
12 Months
2013
2012
$000

$000

(17,337)

(33,794)

(58)

(6,133)

(17,395)

(39,927)

(17,337)

(33,794)

(58)

(6,133)

(17,395)

(39,927)

No.

No.

Thousands

Thousands

1,832,740

877,204

4,881

8,081

1,837,621

885,285

For diluted earnings per share
Net loss from continuing operations attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent (from basic EPS)
Loss attributable to discontinued operations
Net loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of parent

(b)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period used in calculating basic EPS
Dilutive effect of options & retention rights
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period used in calculating dilutive
EPS

Note 13

Cash and Short term deposits

Cash at bank and in hand
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Current Assets - Trade and Other Receivables
Consolidated Group
2013
2012
$000
$000

Trade receivables

26,796

Allowance for impairment loss

(1,472)

(538)

25,324

23,660

339

3,675

25,663

27,335

Other receivables

24,198

(a) Allowance for Impairment Loss
Trade Receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30-60 day terms. A provision for impairment loss is recognised when there is objective evidence
that an individual trade receivable is impaired. An impairment loss of $1,027,000 (2012: $290,000) has been recognised by the Group in the current period.
These amounts have been included in the administrative expense item.

Movements in the provision for impairment loss were as follows:

9 Months
2013

12 Months
2012

$000

$000

538

248

1,027

290

At 1 July
Charge for the period
Foreign exchange differences
At 31 March/30 June

(93)

-

1,472

538

(b) Ageing of Receivables as at 31 March 2013

2013
2012

Total
$000

0-30
days
$000

31-60
days
$000

61-90
days
$000

91+
days
$000

91+
days CI*
$000

26,796
24,198

11,930
11,105

7,102
6,414

3,587
1,352

2,705
4,789

1,472
538

* Considered impaired (CI)
(c) Related Party Receivables
For terms and conditions of related party receivables refer to note 29(d)
(d) Fair Value
Due to the short-term nature of these receivables, their carrying value is assumed to approximate their fair value.
(e) Foreign Exchanged Interest Risk
Details regarding foreign exchange and interest rate risk exposure are disclosed in note 4.
Note 15

Current Assets – Inventories
Consolidated Group
2013

Work in progress (at cost)
Finished goods (at cost)
Total inventories

2012

$000

$000

3,660

2,528

421

409

4,081

2,937

Inventories recognised as an expense for the 9 months ended 31 March 2013 totalled $3,198,070 (2012: $2,364,724) for the Group. This expense has been
included in the cost of sales line item as a cost of inventories.
Note 16

Non-Current Assets – Trade and Other Receivables
Consolidated Group
2013

2012

$000

$000

Deposits for Security deposit (a)

30

31

Deposits for Bank Guarantee (a)

1,086

364

1,116

395
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Non-Current Assets – Trade and Other Receivables (continued)

(a) Deposits and Guarantees
All deposits and guarantees are held in AA & A+ credit rated (S&P) banks. Interest is earned based on variable interest rates.
(b) Related Party Receivables
There are no non-current related party receivables.
(c) Fair Values
Fair values of the non-current trade and other receivables approximates to their carrying value.
(d) Interest Rate Risk
Details regarding interest rate risk exposure are disclosed in note 4.
Note 17

Information relating to Neptune Marine Services Ltd
2013

2012

$000

$000

41,723

29,331

123,037

142,179

Current liabilities

42,780

37,880

Total liabilities

60,407

55,584

Current assets
Total assets

Issued capital
Retained earnings
Translation Reserve
Hedge Reserve

273,804

273,031

(200,157)

(178,022)

(17,454)

(14,886)

170

170

6,267

6,302

62,630

86,595

(1,091)

(1,815)

Impairment of investment

(20,661)

(35,875)

(Loss) for the parent entity after impairment

(21,752)

(37,690)

Total comprehensive income of the parent entity

(24,319)

(43,000)

11

202

-

4

11

206

-

5

11

211

— not later than 12 months

660

1,400

— between 12 months and 5 years

991

1,573

1,651

2,973

Option Reserves

(Loss) for the parent entity before impairment

Finance Lease Commitments
Payable — minimum lease payments
— not later than 12 months
— between 12 months and 5 years
Minimum lease payments
Less future finance charges
Present value of minimum lease payments
Operating Lease Commitments
Payable — minimum lease payments

Minimum lease payments

Financial Guarantees
The parent has issued the following guarantees in relation to the debt of its subsidiaries:
Lease guarantee with National Australia Bank and Bank West for the leased property of Neptune Marine Services (2013: $360,164, 2012: $360,164).
This lease expires on 30th November 2015.
Lease guarantee with National Australia Bank for the leased property for Neptune Geomatics (2013: $152,250 2012: $152,250). This lease expires on
31 July 2013.
Guarantee in relation to the contract performance of its subsidiary Neptune Stabilisation (2013: $208,605 , 2012: $208,605)
Guarantee in relation to the contract performance of its subsidiary Neptune Geomatics. Neptune Marine Services, Neptune Geomatics and Eni
Australia B.V. entered into a deed of parent company guarantee on 25/11/2010. The effect of the deed is Neptune Marine Services Limited has
guaranteed to ENI Australia B.V. the performance and observance by Neptune Geomatics of all terms and conditions of the contract and indemnities.
Contingent Liabilities
The parent entity had no contingent liabilities at 31 March 2013.
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Information relating to Neptune Marine Services Ltd (continued)

Tax Consolidated Group
Neptune Marine Services Limited and its 100% owned Australian resident subsidiaries formed a tax consolidated group with effect from 1 July 2009. Neptune
Marine Services Limited is the head entity of the tax consolidated group. Members of the Group have entered into a tax sharing agreement that provides for the
allocation of income tax liabilities between the entities should the head entity default on its tax payment obligations. Tax liability for this financial period has
been disclosed in accordance with this agreement.
Note 18

Property, Plant and Equipment

Movements in carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between the beginning and the end of the current financial period
Office
Furniture,
Equipment
& Software
$000

Leasehold
Improvements
$000

Plant and
Equipment
$000

Leased
Vehicle
$000

ROV's &
Vessels
$000

Construction
in Progress
$000

Total
$000

Consolidated Group:
Balance at 1 July 2011

1,901

1,103

8,620

155

12,456

844

25,079

Additions

109

242

3,079

55

382

153

4,020

Disposals

(5)

-

(27)

(44)

(325)

(69)

(470)

Transfers

27

-

372

2

354

(755)

-

(438)

(225)

(1,940)

(28)

(1,293)

-

(3,924)

Depreciation expense
Foreign exchange

28

-

43

(2)

444

(19)

494

Balance at 30 June 2012

1,622

1,120

10,147

138

12,018

154

25,199

Cost

3,468

2,030

17,375

312

21,648

154

44,987

Accumulated depreciation &
impairment

(1,846)

(910)

(7,228)

(174)

(9,630)

-

(19,788)

Net carrying amount

1,622

1,120

10,147

138

12,018

154

25,199

Balance at 1 July 2012

1,622

1,120

10,147

138

12,018

154

25,199

Additions

46

29

462

-

241

1,564

2,342

Disposals

(57)

(142)

(920)

(7)

(1)

-

(1,127)

Transfers

104

-

400

99

-

(603)

-

(273)

(164)

(1,389)

(30)

(1,010)

-

(2,866)

(4)

-

(20)

-

(434)

-

(458)

Balance at 31 March 2013

1,438

843

8,680

200

10,814

1,115

23,090

Cost

3,431

1,885

15,913

382

21,178

1,115

43,904

(1,993)

(1,042)

(7,233)

(182)

(10,364)

-

(20,814)

1,438

843

8,680

200

10,814

1,115

23,090

Depreciation expense
Foreign exchange

Accumulated depreciation &
impairment
Net carrying amount
Note 19

Intangible Assets and Goodwill
2013

2012

$000

$000

28,782

61,132

-

2,094

Goodwill
Balance at 1 July
Net increase arising from prior year acquisition earn outs
Foreign exchange differences

(108)

515

(16,515)

(34,959)

12,159

28,782

Balance at 1 July

1,875

2,110

Amortisation

(176)

(235)

Impairment
Closing balance
Development costs

Closing balance
Total Intangible Assets
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Intangible Assets and Goodwill (continued)

Description of the Group’s Intangible Assets and Goodwill
(i) Development costs
Development costs are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. This intangible asset has been assessed as having a
finite life and is amortised using the straight line method over a remaining 16 year period. If an impairment indication arises, the recoverable amount is
estimated and an impairment loss is recognised to the extent that the recoverable amount is lower than the carrying amount.
(ii) Goodwill
After initial recognition, goodwill acquired in a business combination is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is not amortised but
is subject to impairment testing on an annual basis or whenever there is an indication of impairment.
Impairment Losses Recognised
An impairment loss of $16,515,000 on goodwill was recognised for the 9 month period ended 31 March 2013 (12 months ended 30 June 2012: $34,959,000). The
recoverable amount was based on value in use calculation.
Impairment Tests for Goodwill and Intangibles with Indefinite Useful Lives
(i) Description of the cash generating units and other relevant information
Goodwill acquired through business combinations have been allocated to and are tested at the level of their respective cash generating units (“CGU”) for
impairment testing for each of the entities as detailed below.
The recoverable amount of all cash generating units is determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections as at 31 March based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a one year period. The long term growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of Neptune beyond the
one year period is 3% (2012: 5%). This considers the industry outlook and market conditions, along with the flow on benefit from internal restructuring and the
disposal of non-performing assets.
The pre-tax, risk adjusted discount rates applied to these assets specific cash flows are:
2013

2012

Subsea Stabilisation

17.6%

17.6%

Survey

17.6%

17.6%

Asset Integrity

17.6%

17.6%

Engineering - UK

16.4%

16.4%

Diving - Australia

17.6%

17.6%

Remotely Operated Vehicles

17.8%

17.8%

(ii) Carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the cash generating units (CGU)

Carrying amount of goodwill at CGU level

Consolidated Group
2013
2012
$000
$000

Subsea Stabilisation

-

2,127

Survey

-

7,430

Asset Integrity

3,000

3,408

Engineering - UK

3,184

4,851

Diving - Australia

5,975

5,975

Remote Operating Vehicles

-

4,991

12,159

28,782

(iii) Key assumptions used in value in use calculations for the cash generating units
The calculations of value in use for all CGU’s are most sensitive to the following assumptions:
Earnings
Discount rates
Inflation rates
Growth rates
Earnings – The forecast budget process was developed based on revenue expectations in the year built around existing customer contracts along with the
potential to develop new markets and sustain growth. Gross margins were calculated on historical values and revenue mix within the various divisional
segments throughout the Group with particular emphasis given to achieving consolidated earnings growth.
Discount rates - Discount rates reflect management’s estimates of the time value of money and the risks specific to each unit that are not already reflected in
the cash flows. In determining appropriate discount rates for each unit, regard has been given to the weighted average cost of capital of the entity as a whole
adjusted for country and business risks specific to each unit.
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Intangible Assets and Goodwill (continued)

Inflation rates – Inflation rates have been determined using the Consumer Price Index (“CPI”) (3%) for the countries from which materials and services are
sourced.
Growth rates – This considers the industry outlook and market conditions, along with the flow on benefit from internal restructuring and the disposal of nonperforming assets (2%).
(iv) Sensitivity to changes in assumptions
With regard to the assessment of the value in use of the non-impaired CGU’s, management believe that no reasonably possible change in any of the above key
assumptions would cause the carrying value of the CGU to materially exceed its recoverable amount.
Assuming all other assumptions remain constant but the pre-tax discount rate is increased by 0.5%, there would be no other impairment..
Assuming all other assumptions remain constant but the growth rate and CPI drops by 1% per annum, there would be no other impairment.
For Subsea Stabilisation, Survey and Asset Integrity as the estimated recoverable amount is equal to their carrying value any adverse change in a key assumption
would result in a further impairment loss.
Note 20

Other Assets
Consolidated Group
2013

2012

$000

$000

Prepayments

856

1,343

Deposits

105

99

11,822

6,326

Other assets

-

139

Promissory note - Loan to US

-

736

12,783

8,643

CURRENT

Accrued income

Note 21

Trade and Other Payables

CURRENT

Consolidated Group
2013
2012
$000
$000

Unsecured liabilities
Trade payables
Sundry payables and accrued expenses

Contingent Consideration

7,957

5,755

13,168

9,020

21,125

14,775

$000

$000

Balance at beginning of period

-

3,788

Operational increase in earn outs

-

318

Payments
Balances at period end

-

(4,106)
-

(a) Fair Value
Due to the short-term nature of these payables, their carrying value is assumed to approximate their fair value. Current payables are on 30-45 day payment
terms.
(b) Financial Guarantees
Contingent consideration represents the value of contingent consideration resulting from meeting an earnings target expected to be paid in line with the related
acquisitions. These are revised at each reporting date based on revised expectations of meeting the earnings target. As at 31 March 2013, there are no
outstanding payments to be made.
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Interest-bearing Loans and Borrowings
Consolidated Group

CURRENT

2013

2012

$000

$000

103

102

11

944

114

1,046

Unsecured liabilities
Hire purchase liability
Other
Secured liabilities

-

-

Debtors facility

-

415

-

415

114

1,461

164

229

164

229

NON-CURRENT
Unsecured liabilities
Hire purchase liabilities

(a) Fair values
The carrying amounts of the Group’s current and non-current borrowings approximate their fair value. The fair values have been calculated by discounting the
expected future cash. The fair values have been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows at prevailing market interest rates average 4.88% to
10.86% (2012: 5.83% to 12.66%%) depending on the type of borrowing.
(b) Interest rate, foreign exchange and liquidity risk
Details regarding interest rate, foreign exchange and liquidity risk is disclosed in note 4.
(c) Debtor facility
Neptune has a debtor facility with an $8 million limit. Subsequent to year end, Neptune agreed an extension of this facility to 31st March 2014. As part of the
extension, Neptune agreed to various covenants based on interest cover, working capital ratio and capital adequacy.

Note 23

Provisions

CURRENT

Consolidated Group
2013
2012
$000
$000

Provision for employee entitlements - Annual leave
Total provisions

1,194
1,194

1,277
1,277

Consolidated Group
2013
2012
NON- CURRENT

$000

$000

Provision for employee entitlements - Long service leave

256

287

Total provisions

256

287

(a) Movements in provisions: There are no other non-employee related provisions.
(b) Nature and timing of provisions: Refer to note 2(u) for the relevant acccounting policy and a discussion of the significant estimations and assumptions applied
in the measurement of this provision.
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Contributed Equity
Consolidated Group

1,849,505,508 (2012: 1,815,307,946) fully paid ordinary shares
(a)

2013

2012

$000

$000

273,804

273,031

Ordinary Shares

At 1 July 2011

Consolidated Group
No.

$000

1,753,226,241

271,155

59,118,3721

1,775

Movements during the current period
—

Vendor shares

—

Exercise of options

—

Retention rights issued

—

Non-Executive Director (NED) share plan

30,000

-

2,000,000

54

At 30 June 2012

933,333
1,815,307,946

47
273,031

At 1 July 2012

1,815,307,946

273,031

34,197,562
1,849,505,508

773
273,804

Movements during the current period
—

LTI and Retention rights

At 31 March 2013

Ordinary shares participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the parent entity in proportion to the number of shares held. At the shareholders
meetings each ordinary share is entitled to one vote when a poll is called, otherwise each shareholder has one vote on a show of hands.
1

Vendor shares relate to consideration and earn out payments for the acquisition of Neptune Asset Integrity.

(b)

Options

For information relating to the Neptune Marine Services Limited employee option plan, including details of options issued, exercised and
lapsed during the financial period and the options outstanding at period-end. Refer to Note 31.

For information relating to share options issued to key management personnel during the financial period. Refer to Note 30.

(c)
Capital Management
The treasury, accounting and financial analysis functions within the corporate finance group have responsibility for managing the Group’s financial activities
including; capital and liquidity management, budgeting and forecasting, financial risk management, compliance and reporting in order to ensure that the Group
delivers value to shareholders, fund operations and continue as a going concern.
This area of responsibility is governed by a number of Board and Executive approved policies and procedures. Core capital management objectives include the
maintenance of a number of financial metrics within Board approved guidelines including liquidity, leverage and profitability ratios.
The tools and strategies employed to effectively manage the Group's capital structure include those associated with the management of liquidity, capital
structure and asset utilisation and financial risk.
There are no externally imposed capital requirements.
There have been no changes in the strategy adopted by management to control the capital of the Group since the ratios for the 9 month period ended 31 March
2013 and 12 month period ended 30 June 2012 are as follows:
Consolidated Group
2013

2012

$000

$000

278

1,690

Less cash and cash equivalents

(9,741)

(7,786)

Net debt/(surplus)

(9,463)

(6,096)

Total equity

69,009

86,595

Total capital

59,546

80,499

-16%

-8%

Total borrowings

Gearing ratio
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Reserves
Consolidated Group

Reserves
Foreign currency translation reserve
Employee equity benefits reserve
Hedge reserve

2013

2012

$000

$000

(28,650)

(27,721)

6,267

6,302

170

170

(22,213)

(21,249)

(27,721)

(35,267)

Movements:
Foreign currency translation reserve
Balance at 1 July
Currency translation difference arising during the 9 months
Balance at period end

(929)

7,546

(28,650)

(27,721)

6,302

6,354

738

(52)

Employee equity benefits reserve
Balance at 1 July
Cost of equity benefits issued to employees
Conversion of Retention Rights

(773)

-

Balance at period end

6,267

6,302

170

170

-

-

170

170

Hedge reserve
Balance at 1 July
Net profit/(loss) after tax on a hedge of net investment
Balance at period end

Foreign currency translation reserve
The foreign currency translation reserve is used to record exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries.
Employee equity benefits reserve
The option reserve is used to record the value of share based payments provided to employees, including KMP, as part of their remuneration. Refer to note 31
for further details of these plans.
Hedge reserve
The hedge reserve is used to record gains and losses on hedges of the net investments in foreign operations.
Note 26

Commitments
Consolidated Group

(a)

Finance Lease Commitments

2013

2012

Payable — minimum lease payments

$000

$000

— not later than 12 months

136

341

— between 12 months and 5 years

173

218

Minimum lease payments

309

559

Less future finance charges

(31)

5

Present value of minimum lease payments

278

564

Finance leases for continuing operations

278

564

-

-

278

564

Finance leases for discontinuing operations

The finance leases relate to leased vehicles and the leasehold improvement of premises for Neptune Marine Services Limited and several of the subsidiaries. All
finance leases will be settled within the next 5 years. The carrying value of finance leases and hire purchase contracts for various items of plant and machinery is
$494,765 (2012: $564,000). There are no restrictions placed upon the lessee by entering into these leases.

NEPTUNE MARINE SERVICES LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN: 76 105 665 843

62

2013 FINANCIAL REPORT
Note 26

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Commitments (continued)
Consolidated Group

(b)

Operating Lease Commitments

2013

2012

$000

$000

— not later than 12 months

1,849

2,919

— between 12 months and 5 years

2,500

4,012

Minimum lease payments

4,349

6,931

Operating leases for continuing operations

3,925

6,368

Non-cancellable operating leases contracted for but not capitalised in the financial statements
Payable — minimum lease payments

Operating leases for discontinuing operations

356

563

4,281

6,931

All operating leases of the Group relate to the leasing of premises. All leases are payable monthly. These leases have an average life of between one and five
years with no renewal option included in the contracts. There are no restrictions placed upon the lessee by entering into these leases. The amount recognised in
the income statement for operating lease rentals in 2013 was $2,189,000 (2012: $3,598,000).
(c) Capital Expenditure Commitments
The Group had contractual obligations to purchase plant and equipment for $2,276,000 at balance date (2012: $328,000). This commitment is expected to be
settled within 12 months of the balance sheet date. The 2012 commitment was settled during 2012.
Note 27

Contingencies

Financial Guarantees
The Group has provided the following non-financial guarantees to its business associates which commit the group to make payments on behalf of these
entities upon failure to perform under the terms of the relevant contracts.

—
—
—

Performance guarantees
Guarantees related to leases
Letter of credit

2013

2012

$000
533
552
-

$000
533
1,007
1,860

1,085

3,400

The guarantees related to leases are secured by cash.
Note 28

(a)

Cash Flow Information

Reconciliation of net profit after tax to net cash flows from operations
Loss after income tax

2013

2012

$000

$000

(17,395)

(39,927)

Cash flows excluded from profit attributable to operating activities:
Non-cash flows in profit
Depreciation/ amortisation
Goodwill Impairment
(Gain)/loss on disposal of plant and equipment
Share based payment expense
Foreign exchange gain

3,042

4,165

16,515

34,959

1,098

(78)

738

2

57

6,097

(6,270)

245

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of the effects of purchase and disposal of
subsidiaries
(Increase)/decrease in trade and term receivables
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments
(Increase)/decrease in inventories

485

19

(1,144)

185

(Increase)/decrease in deferred tax assets and liabilities

(511)

(199)

Increase/(decrease) in trade payables and accruals

6,337

(3,233)

Increase/(decrease) in income taxes payable

666

1,765

Increase/(decrease) in provisions

(112)

466

Cash flow (used in) from operations

3,506

4,466
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Cash Flow Information (continued)
Non-cash investing activities

2013

Vendor shares issued
Share-based payments

(c)

2012

$000

$000

-

1,775

738

2

738

1,777

8,000

8,000

-

(415)

8,000

7,585

Debtor Finance Facilities
Debtor finance facilities
Amount utilised
Unutilised facility

Note 29

Related Party Disclosures

(a)
Subsidiaries
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Neptune Marine Services Limited and the subsidiaries listed in the following table.
Country of

Percentage owned (%)*

Incorporation

2013

2012

Parent Entity:
Neptune Marine Services Limited

Australia

Subsidiaries of Neptune Marine Services Limited
Neptune Diving Services Pty Ltd

Australia

100%

100%

Allied Diving Services Pty Ltd

Australia

100%

100%

Neptune Marine Services International Pty Ltd

Australia

100%

100%

Neptune Fabrication Services Pty Ltd

Australia

100%

100%

Neptune Subsea Engineering Pty Ltd

Australia

100%

100%

Neptune Asset Integrity Services Pty Ltd

Australia

100%

100%

Neptune Subsea Stabilisation Pty Ltd

Australia

100%

100%

Neptune Geomatics Pty Ltd

Australia

100%

100%

Neptune Underwater Services (USA) LLC

United States of America

100%

100%

Neptune Delaware Holdings Inc.

United States of America

100%

100%

Neptune Scotland Holdings Ltd

United Kingdom

100%

100%

Neptune Offshore Services Ltd

United Kingdom

100%

100%

Neptune Deeptech Symons Ltd

United Kingdom

100%

100%

Neptune Subsea Engineering Ltd

United Kingdom

100%

100%

Neptune ROV Services Holdings Ltd

United Kingdom

100%

100%

Neptune ROV Services Ltd

United Kingdom

100%

100%

Neptune Asia Holdings Pte Ltd

Singapore

100%

100%

Neptune Marine Pacific Pte Ltd

Singapore

100%

100%

Neptune Subsea Stabilisation Pte Ltd

Singapore

100%

100%

PT Neptune Subsea Stabilisation

Indonesia

100%

100%

Neptune Access IRM Pte Ltd

Singapore

100%

100%

Neptune Marine Offshore Pte Ltd

Singapore

100%

100%

Neptune Subsea Services Sdn Bhd

Malaysia

100%

100%

Neptune ROV Services Pte Ltd

Singapore

100%

100%

Submersible Technology Services Sdn Bhd

Malaysia

100%

100%

Submersible Technology Services (Middle East S.P.C)

Bahrain

100%

100%

Neptune Marine Subsea Services Sdn Bhd

Brunei

100%

100%

* Percentage of voting power is in proportion to ownership
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Related Party Disclosures (continued)

Balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties of the Company, have been eliminated on consolidation and are
not disclosed in this note. Details of transactions between the Group and other related parties are disclosed below.
(b) Ultimate parent
MTQ Corporation Limited is the parent entity and the parent of the Group is Neptune Marine Services Limited.
(c) Key management personnel
Details relating to KMP, including remuneration paid, are included in note 30.
(d) Transactions with related parties
There were no related party transactions during the period.
Note 30
(a)

(b)

Key Management Personnel

Names and positions held of the Group and parent entity key management personnel in office at any time during the financial period are:
Directors
Mr Ross Kennan (resigned 27th November 2012)
Mr Boon Wee Kuah
Mr Peter Wallace
Mr Jeff Dowling
Mr John Cooper

Position
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director

Key Management Personnel
Mr Robin King
Mr Colin Napier
Mr Vincent Allegre (appointed 6th August 2012)

Chief Executive Officer
Chief Financial Officer
Chief Operating Officer

Refer to Remuneration Report contained in the Directors’ Report for details of remuneration paid or payable to each member of the Group’s key
management personnel.

Consolidated Group

Short term employee benefits

9 Months
2013

12 Months
2012

$000

$000

1,819

1,860

Post-employment benefits

177

174

Share based payments

548

293

Termination payments

-

230

2,544

2,557

(c)

Option holdings

Number of options held by key management personnel:
No options were issued during 2013.

2012

Balance
1 July 2011

Key Management Personnel
Mr Kenneth
Nimitz
400,000

Granted as
Compensation

Options
Exercised

-

Net Change
Other

-

(400,000)

Balance
30 June
2011

Total Vested
30 June 2012

-

-

Total
Exercisable
30 June 2012

Total
Unexercisable
30 June 2012

-

-

400,000
(400,000)
Note that Ross Kennan, Geoff Newman, Robert Scott, Boon Wee Kuah, Peter Wallace, Jeff Dowling, John Cooper, Robin King & Colin Napier have not been
granted any options.

-

The 'net change other' column above includes those options that have been forfeited by holders as well as options issued during the year under review.
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Key Management Personnel (continued)
Shareholdings

Number of Shares held by Key Management Personnel
2013

Balance
1 July 2012

Received as
Compensation

Compulsory sales

Net Change Other

Balance
31 March 2013

-

-

-

-

-

Directors
Mr Boon Wee Kuah
Mr Peter Wallace

2,000,000

-

-

(2,000,000)

-

Mr Jeff Dowling

900,000

-

-

(900,000)

-

Mr John Cooper

1,550,000

-

-

(1,550,000)

-

Mr Colin Napier

1,000,000

6,600,000

-

(7,600,000)

-

Mr Robin King

2,800,000

17,000,000

-

(19,800,000)

-

-

-

-

-

-

8,250,000

23,600,000

-

(31,850,000)

-

Balance
1 July 2011

Received as
Compensation

Options Exercised

Net Change Other

Balance
30 June 2012

1,465,671

400,000

(400,000)

1,000,000

2,465,671

Mr Geoff Newman

269,046

200,000

(200,000)

200,000

469,046

Mr Robert Scott

660,553

200,000

(200,000)

500,000

1,160,553

Mr Boon Wee Kuah

-

50,000

(50,000)

-

-

Mr Peter Wallace

-

-

-

2,000,000

2,000,000

Mr Jeff Dowling

-

-

-

900,000

900,000

Mr John Cooper

-

-

-

1,550,000

1,550,000

800,000

2,000,000

-

-

2,800,000

-

-

-

1,000,000

1,000,000

3,195,270

2,850,000

(850,000)

7,150,000

12,345,270

Balance
1 July 2012

Granted in 2013

Vested in 2013

Net Change Other*

Balance
31 March 2013

11,000,000

22,088,354

(11,000,000)

-

22,088,354

Mr Colin Napier

3,000,000

-

(3,000,000)

-

-

Vincent Allegre

-

-

-

-

-

14,000,000

22,088,354

(14,000,000)

-

22,088,354

Balance
1 July 2012

Granted in 2013

Vested in 2013

Net Change Other

Balance
31 March 2013

Mr Robin King

6,000,000

-

(6,000,000)

-

-

Mr Colin Napier

3,600,000

-

(3,600,000)

-

-

Vincent Allegre

-

6,000,000

-

-

6,000,000

9,600,000

6,000,000

(9,600,000)

-

6,000,000

Key Management Personnel

Vincent Allegre

Number of Shares held by Key Management Personnel
2012
Directors
Mr Ross Kennan

Key Management Personnel
Mr Robin King
Mr Colin Napier

(e)

LTI Performance rights

Number of Rights held by Key Management Personnel
2013
Key Management Personnel
Mr Robin King

(f)

Retention rights

Number of Retention Rights held by Key Management Personnel
2013
Key Management Personnel

The 'net change other' column above includes those options that have been forfeited by holders as well as options issued during the period under review.
Further disclosure of options granted and exercised during the period can be found on page 16 of the Directors' Report.
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Share-Based Payments

Recognised share-based payment expenses
2013

2012

$000

$000

4

(405)

LTI Rights

358

324

Retention Rights

376

83

Total

738

2

Options ( lapsed/cancelled)

The following share-based payment arrangements existed at 31 March 2013:
Incentive Option Scheme
The Company operates an ownership-based incentive scheme known as the Neptune Marine Services Limited Incentive Option Scheme ("Scheme"), which was
approved by shareholders at a general meeting held on 25 November 2005.
The Scheme provides for employees, Executive Director and others involved in the management of the Company to be offered options for no consideration.
Each option is convertible to one ordinary share. The Board may determine the exercise price of the options in its absolute discretion. Subject to the ASX Listing
Rules, the exercise price may be nil but to the extent the Listing Rules specify or require a minimum price, the exercise price in respect of an offer made must not
be less than any minimum price specified in the Listing Rules. Options issued under the Scheme that have not lapsed may be exercised at any time up to the
date which is 5 years after the date of the grant of the options, or such other expiry date as the Board determines in its discretion at the time of grant. There are
no voting or dividend rights attached to the options.
Options may not be offered under the Scheme if the total number of shares which would be issued where each option is accepted, together with the number of
shares in the same class or options to acquire such shares issued pursuant to all employee or executive share schemes during the previous five years, exceeds 5%
of the total number of issued shares in that class as at the date of the offer.
Employees are entitled to the options if they remain employed with the Company over the service period which is determined at the date of grant on an
individual basis.
All options granted to key management personnel are ordinary shares in Neptune Marine Services Limited which confer a right of one ordinary share for every
option held.
The number and weighted average exercise price (WAEP) of options is as follows:
Consolidated Group
2013

2012

Number of Options

Exercise
Price
$

Outstanding at the beginning of the period
Granted during the period
Forfeited during the period
Exercised during the period
Expired during the period

5,306,347
-

0.64

14,286,682
(8,950,335)
(30,000)
-

0.61
0.59
0.01
-

Outstanding at the end of the period

5,306,347

0.64

5,306,347

0.64

Exercisable at the end of the period

5,171,350

0.64

5,171,350

0.64

Number of
Options

Weighted Average Exercise
Price
$

Weighted Average

No options were exercised during the period. In 2012 there were 30,000 options exercised under the incentive option scheme during the year ended 30 June
2012. The weighted average share price at the date of exercise was $0.01
The options outstanding at 31 March 2013 had a weighted average exercise price of $0.64 (2012: $0.64) and a weighted average remaining contractual life of
1.20 years (2012: 1.28 years). Exercise prices range from $0.01 to $1.23 in respect of options outstanding at 31 March 2013 (2012: $0.01 to $1.23).
No options were granted during the period.
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Share-Based Payments (continued)

In 2010 options issued were calculated by using a Binomial option pricing model applying the following inputs:
Date options issued
Weighted average exercise price
Weighted average life of the option (years)
Underlying share price
Expected share price volatility
Risk free interest rate

1/08/2010
$0.58
5.00
$0.28
71%
4.50%

Historical volatility has been the basis for determining expected share price volatility as it assumed that this is indicative of future tender, which may not
eventuate.
The life of the options is based on the historical exercise patterns, which may not eventuate in the future.
Included under employee benefits expense in the income statement is a net debit of $4,000 (2012: net credit $405,000). The net credit resulted from the
cancelling or lapsing of options previously expensed.
Long Term Incentives Plan (LTI)
a) Granting of LTI’s
LTI rights are granted to those employees who can directly influence the long- term strategic direction of the Company, and were approved by shareholders at
the AGM held on 30th November 2011.
These rights are granted based on a percentage of base salary, ranging between 25% to 100%, depending on role. Relevant employees will receive a grant every
year as part of their total annual remuneration and the rights will vest into fully paid ordinary shares on 4th anniversary of their grant date, subject to meeting
performance hurdles. Each grant of LTI rights will be split into two equal tranches, with each tranche having an independent performance hurdle.
Ordinarily, the number of LTI rights would be based on the applicable salary amount divided by the market value of the LTI right. For 2012, 5 cents per right was
used as opposed to the market value (average 2.15 cents) and therefore, employees under this plan received a smaller allocation than would normally be the
case.
During the period 22,088,353 LTI rights were granted, 11,044,177 in Tranche 1 and 11,044,177 in Tranche 2. The fair value of these rights were calculated using
the Monte Carlo simulation method and valued the rights at $0.032 and $0.032 respectively. At 31 March 2013 22,083,353 remained outstanding.
b) Vesting of LTI’s
Tranche 1 and Tranche 2
The contractual life of each LTI Right granted is 4 years. There are no cash settlement alternatives.
LTI rights of the CEO and CFO were subject to accelerated vesting due to change of control during the period. All issued rights are now fully vested as a result of
takeover bid from MTQ.
As the performance rights were issued during the takeover bid which was fixed at 0.032c (current market price), the performance rights as such were valued at
the bid price, as the share price is in this instance already determined.
Included under employee benefits expense in the income statement is $357,675 (2012: $83,313). This relates in full, to equity-settled share-based payment
transactions under the Performance Rights Plan.
Retention Performance Rights Plan
The Executives identified as key to the organisation’s objectives to grow the business are granted with Retention Performance Rights. These were approved by
shareholders at the AGM held on 30th November 2011.
The Retention Rights will be tied into the Executives’ continued employment with the Company, will have a 5 year life and will vest annually in equal tranches
over 4 years. Should the employee resign during this 4 year period, any unvested Retention Rights will lapse.
During the period 8,590,000 rights were granted. The fair value of these rights is based on the market value of the Company’s shares at the date granted and
range between $0.024 and $0.25. At 31 March 2013 14,488,147 rights remained outstanding.
Included under employee benefits expense in the income statement is $375,961 (2012: $324,000). This relates in full, to equity-settled share-based payment
transactions under the Retention Performance Rights Plan.

(
Note 32

Subsequent Events

There were no after balance date events.
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR LISTED PUBLIC COMPANIES

The following additional information is required by the Australian Securities Ltd in respect of listed public Companies only.

Shareholding
a)
Distribution of shareholders category (size of holiding)
Range
1 - 1,000
1,001 - 5,000
5,001 -10,000
10,001 – 100,000
100,001 – 9,999,999,999
Rounding
Total

Unmarketable Parcels
Minimum $500.00 parcel at $0.0260 per unit

b)

Total Holders
931
875
541
1,088
280

Shares
335,959
2,587,629
4,380,401
38,638,579
1,803,562,940

3,715

1,849,505,508

Minimum Parcel Size
19,231

Holders
2688

% of Issued Capital
0.02
0.14
0.24
2.09
97.52
-0.01

Units
12,101,703

The name of the substantial shareholder listed in the holding Company’s register as at 24 May 2013 is:

Shareholder
Blossomvale Investment Pte Ltd

Number Ordinary
1,605,524,729

c)
Voting Rights
The Voting rights attached to each class of equity security are as follows:
Ordinary Shares
Each ordinary share is entitled to one vote when a poll is called, otherwise each member present at a meeting or by proxy has one vote on a show of hands.
Redeemable and Converting Share Preference
These shares have no voting rights.
d)
20 Largest Shareholders – Ordinary Shares
As at 24 May 2013

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.

Name
Blossomvale Investments Pte Ltd
UBS Nominees Pty Ltd
James Howard Nigel Smalley
Mr David Colin Husband + Ms Nina Dons Landsnes
Barry Albert Lilly + Burnice June Lilly
Mr Gary Lester Hanikeri
Merrill Lynch Australia Nominees
Lynette Susan Preston
HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia) Limited
Mrs Leanne Blake + Mr Trevor Roy Blake
Mr Robert Leask Delaney + Miss Jennifer Jane Salmon
Noel Kennedy Smith
J McCarthy & Co Pty Ltd
David Christopher Peach + Susan Fiona Peach
Wuudee Australia Pty Limited
Miss Teresa Hardy
BUZPASS Pty Ltd
Mr Bernard Melville Kent
ABN Amro Clearing Sydney Nominees Pty Ltd
Mr Czeslaw Czapla & Mr Zdzislaw Czapla
Total
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No. of Ordinary Fully Paid Shares Held
1,605,524,729
52,338,000
20,000,000
14,354,662
5,000,000
4,450,000
4,000,000
3,832,218
2,725,220
2,084,908
2,010,000
2,000,000
1,702,000
1,700,000
1,530,000
1,500,000
1,455,000
1,248,600
1,218,808
1,200,000
1,729,874,145

% Held of Issued Ordinary Capital
86.81
2.83
1.08
0.78
0.27
0.24
0.22
0.21
0.15
0.11
0.11
0.11
0.09
0.09
0.08
0.08
0.08
0.07
0.07
0.06
93.53
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
Principle
1
1.1

Corporate Governance best practice recommendation
LAY SOLID FOUNDATIONS FOR MANAGEMENT AND OVERSIGHT
Establish and disclose the functions reserved to the Board and those delegated to senior
Executives

Compliance

How we comply



The Board has established a Corporate Governance Statement which summaries the role and
duties of the Board. The Company is in the process of reviewing and updating the Corporate
Governance Statement.
The Company considers that the primary responsibility of the Board is to oversee the
Company's business activities and management for the benefit of the shareholders by:

Setting objectives, goals and strategic direction with management with a view to
maximising shareholder value;

Overseeing the financial position and monitoring the business and affairs of the
Company;

Establishing corporate governance, ethical, environmental and health and safety
standards;

Ensuring significant business risks are identified and appropriately managed

Ensuring the composition of the Board is appropriate, selecting directors for
appointment to the Board and reviewing the performance of the Board and the
contributions of individual directors.

1.2

Disclose the process for evaluating the performance of senior Executives



The Board has delegated responsibilities and authorities to management to enable
management to conduct the Company's day to day activities. Senior Executives have a high
level of authority commensurate with their position in the Company. Authority levels for all
management are set out in writing and form a fundamental part of their employment
conditions. The management structure of the Company and the suitability of authority levels
are determined and reviewed by the Board. Matters which are not covered by the
delegations require Board approval. The Corporate Governance Statement is available on the
Company's website in the Investor Centre section.
The Board regularly evaluates the performance of the Board, its committees, individual
Directors and key senior Executives.
The Board has established a Human Resources and Compensation Committee to assist it in
exercising its reviews of its key senior Executives.
The Human Resources and Compensation committee receives assessments of performance of
Executives reporting to the CEO through the CEO assisted by the Human Resources Manager
with the Chief Financial Officer also assessed by the Chairs of the Audit and Governance and
Occupational Health & Safety Committee.
Refer to the Director’s Report for a summary of performance of the Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer.
The Company has a formal induction process for its senior Executives.
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Principle
1.3

Corporate Governance best practice recommendation
Companies should provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on
Principle 1.

2

STRUCTURE THE BOARD TO ADD VALUE

2.1

2.2
2.3
2.4

Compliance

How we comply
As at the date of this statement, the Company is of the view that it has complied with each of
the Recommendations under Principle 1; and the Company has undertaken a performance
evaluation for senior Executives during the financial period in accordance with the process
set out in Recommendation 1.2.

A majority of the Board should be independent directors



The chairperson should be an independent director
The roles of chairperson and chief executive officer should not be exercised by the
same individual
The Board should establish a nomination committee




The majority of the Board is independent. The Board considers an independent director to
be a non-executive director who meets the criteria for independence included in the ASX Best
Practice Recommendations. The Board considers that Mr Jeff Dowling, Mr Peter Wallace and
Mr John Cooper meet these criteria.
The Chairman, Mr Peter Wallace, is considered by the Board to be independent.
The Chairman, Mr Peter Wallace, facilitates the relationship between the Board and, Mr
Robin King, the Chief Executive Officer.
The Company does not presently have a separate nomination or remuneration committee as
required by Best Practice Recommendations 2.4. The size of the Company and Board does
not warrant the establishment of a separate nomination committee. The duties of such
committee have been considered and adopted by the Board.



During the period the board engaged an executive search firm to assist it with the
recruitment of Non-Executive Directors. This engagement involved the assessment of the
Board’s current skills to ensure any incoming Directors would complement and enhance the
board’s skill level and experience. The Executive search firm reports directly into the Board.

2.5

The process for evaluating the performance of the Board, its committees and individual
Directors should be disclosed.



The Company does not have a documented procedure for the selection and appointment of
directors. The Board informally reviews the skill set of and market expectations for its
directors on a regular basis and considers these factors when appointing / re-electing
directors. The Board invites persons with relevant industry experience and financial
experience to assist it in its appointment of Directors.
The Company does not have a documented procedure for the evaluating the performance of
the Board, its committees and Directors.
An evaluation of the performance of the Board and its Directors is undertaken informally
each period. The Chairman of the Board is the driver of this process. The Board engaged an
external consultant to provide the Board with a performance review, analysis and feedback.
With the assistance of its solicitor the Board conducted a peer evaluation focussing on
efficiency and effectiveness of Board meetings. In previous years the Chairman has
conducted interviews with each Director.

2.6

The ‘Guide to Reporting on Principle 2’ provides that certain information should be
included in the corporate governance section of the Company’s annual report or be
made publicly available, ideally on the Company’s website.

NEPTUNE MARINE SERVICES LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
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The evaluation of the performance of the Board’s various committees is undertaken on an
exception basis. This is also an informal process which is driven by the Chairman of the Board.
As at the date of this statement, the Company is of the view that it has complied with each of
the recommendations under Principle 2, except for Recommendation 2.4. An explanation for
the departures from Recommendation 2.4 is set out above.
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Principle

Corporate Governance best practice recommendation

3

PROMOTE ETHICAL AND RESPONSIBLE DECISION-MAKING

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Compliance

How we comply

Establish a code of conduct and disclose the code or a summary of the code as to:
the practices necessary to maintain confidence in the Company’s integrity;
the practices necessary to take into account their legal obligations and the reasonable
expectations of their stakeholders;
the responsibility and accountability of individuals for reporting and investigating
reports of unethical practices;



The Board has adopted a Code of Conduct. The code outlines the Company's position on a
range of ethical and legal issues including financial inducements, conflicts of interest and
accountability and addresses:
 The practices necessary to maintain confidence in the company's integrity;
 The practices necessary to take into account their legal obligations and the expectations
of their stakeholders; and
 Responsibility and accountability of individuals for reporting and investigating reports of
unethical practices.

Companies should establish a policy concerning diversity and disclose the policy or a
summary of that policy. The policy should include requirements for the Board to
establish measurable objectives for achieving gender diversity for the board to assess
annually both the objectives and progress in achieving them.
Companies should disclose in each annual report the measurable objectives for
achieving gender diversity set by the board in accordance with the diversity policy and
progress towards achieving them.



Companies should disclose in each annual report the proportion of women employees in
the whole organisation, women in senior Executive positions and women on the Board





The code applies to Directors, employees, and anyone who works with the Company.
The Board has adopted a policy concerning diversity and has disclosed the policy on its
website.

Neptune encourages diversity in its workforces and to that end has adopted an equal
opportunity and anti-discrimination policy which seeks to provide equal employment
opportunities to all employee’s regardless of race, gender, religion, age, nationality or any
other grounds while providing a workplace where everyone is treated equally and fairly and
where discrimination, harassment and inequality are not tolerated. Further the Group does
not positively discriminate in favour of any group of people and positions of employment are
based on technical ability, qualifications and experience. Therefore although the company
supports the recommendations contained in the ASX Corporate Governance Principles and
Recommendation, it does not follow the recommendations requiring the company to
establish measurable objectives for achieving gender diversity as this contradicts our position
of not discriminating in favour of any group of people. While not setting specific targets for
achieving gender diversity, Neptune does not discriminate in favour of or against the
appointment of women at any level in the organisation, nor does it discriminate based on
gender in setting salary levels, training and development or in other advancement
opportunities. This will always be based on technical abilities and qualifications with no
consideration to gender.
The table below provides actual data on gender diversity that currently exists within the
group.
Actual

NEPTUNE MARINE SERVICES LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
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Number

%

Women employed whole organisation

58

15.0%

Women in senior Executive roles

0

0.0%

Women in Board positions

0

0.0%
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Principle
3.5

Corporate Governance best practice recommendation
Provide related disclosures:
An explanation of any departure from Recommendation 3
Posting to the company’s web site any applicable code of conduct or a summary and the
diversity policy or a summary of its main provisions

Compliance


The Corporate Governance Policies which includes the Diversity Policy and Corporate Code of
Conduct is posted on the Company’s website.

4

SAFEGUARD INTEGRITY IN FINANCIAL REPORTING

4.1

The Board should establish an Audit Committee



4.2

Structure the audit committee so that it consists of:
a) only Non-Executive Directors
b) majority of independent Directors
c) independent Chairperson, who is not the Chairperson of the Board
d) at least three members
The audit committee should have a formal charter







4.3
4.4

The ‘Guide to Reporting on Principle 4’ provides that certain information should be
included in the corporate governance section of the Company’s Annual Report or be
made publicly available ideally on the Company’s website.

5

MAKE TIMELY AND BALANCED DISCLOSURE

5.1

Companies should establish written policies designed to ensure compliance with ASX
Listing Rule disclosure requirements to ensure accountability at a senior level for that
compliance and disclose those policies or a summary of those policies.

5.2

In accordance with the ‘Guide to Reporting on Principle 5’, the Company has made its
Continuous Disclosure and Compliance Policy available on its website.

6

RESPECT THE RIGHTS OF SHAREHOLDERS

6.1

Companies should design a communications policy for promoting effective
communication with shareholders and encouraging their participation at general
meetings and disclose their policy or a summary of that policy.

6.2

Companies should provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on
Principle 6.
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How we comply
Explanation of departures from Principles and Recommendations 3.1, 3.2, 3.3 and 3.4 (if any)
are set out above. The Company will also explain any departures from Principles and
Recommendations 3.1, 3.2, 3.3 and 3.4 (if any) in its future annual reports.










The Board has established an Audit and Governance Committee to assist it in exercising its
authority.
The committee complies with the structure as required by the Best Practice
Recommendation 4.2.

The Audit and Governance Committee has a formal charter that can be found at the
Company's website.
As at the date of this statement, the Company is of the view that it has complied with each of
the recommendations under Principle 4 and any future departure (if any) from
Recommendation 4 above will be disclosed.
The Board recognises that shareholders and the investment market generally should be
informed of all major business events that influence the Company in a timely and widely
available manner. To safeguard the effective dissemination of information the Company has
adopted an Information Disclosure Policy. The Policy outlines how the Company identifies
and distributes information to shareholders and market participants and has been designed
to ensure:

Compliance with ASX Listing Rule disclosure; and

Accountability at a senior executive level for that compliance.
The Company's Information Disclosure Policy is available on the Company's website in the
Investor Centre section.
The Company's communication strategy forms part of the Company's Information Disclosure
Policy. The Board aims to ensure that the market and shareholders are informed of all major
developments affecting the Company. The Company's website contains a section for
shareholders and investors (Investor Centre). All announcements and corporate material of
interest to shareholders and the market generally can be found on the Investor Centre. The
Company's communication strategy has been designed to:

Promote effective communication with shareholders; and

Encourage shareholder participation at AGMs.
The Company's Information Disclosure Policy is available on the Company's website in the
Investor Centre section.
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Principle

Corporate Governance best practice recommendation

7

RECOGNISE AND MANAGE RISK

7.1

The Company should establish policies for risk oversight and management

Compliance

How we comply



Board
Management is responsible for the management and oversight of material business risks. The
Audit and Governance Committee and Board have assisted the management in exercising its
responsibilities for risk oversight management.
Risk Management Committee
The Board has established via management a separate Risk Management Committee
comprising of senior Executives to oversee the implementation of policies for the oversight
and management of material business risks. That charter and statement of duties and
responsibilities for the Risk Management Committee has been drafted and is subject to
approval by the committee. The main responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee
are:
 Recommend to the Board and then formally announce, implement and maintain a sound
system of risk oversight, management and internal control which:

Identifies, assesses, manages and monitors risk; and

Allows investors and other stakeholders to be informed of material changes to the
Company's risk profile.
The risk management duties of the Committee include:
 Assessment of the Company's risk profile and key areas of risk in particular.
 Recommending to the Board and adopting risk assessment and rating procedures.
 Examining and determining the sufficiency of the Company’s internal processes for
reporting on and managing key risk areas.
 Assessing and recommending to the Board acceptable levels of risk.
 Development and implementation of a risk management framework and internal control
system.
 On an annual basis, agreeing with the Audit and Governance Committee which aspects
of the internal audit are non-financial aspects to be monitored by the Committee.
 Initiating and monitoring special investigations into areas of corporate risk and breakdowns in internal control.
 Reviewing the nature and level of insurance coverage.
The governance duties of the Committee include:
 Monitoring legal and regulatory compliance generally, including compliance with the:

Corporations Act 2001 (Cth);

Trade Practices Act 1974 (Cth);

Listing rules of the ASX; and

Other applicable Australian and overseas laws
 Reviewing and recommending to the Board changes to the Company's Code of Conduct,
other policies (“Company Policies”) and other material designed to guide the Company's
Directors, Executives and other employees as to:

Compliance with legal and other obligations to legitimate stakeholders such as
shareholders and employees;
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Principle

Corporate Governance best practice recommendation

Compliance

How we comply





The ethical standards and practices necessary to maintain confidence in the
Company's integrity;

The responsibility and accountability of individuals for reporting and investigating
reports of unlawful and unethical practices; and

The behaviour expected of them and the Company's corporate culture generally.
Monitoring compliance with Company Policies and investigating allegations of breaches
of those policies.
Reviewing and recommending to the Board policies to avoid conflicts of interest
between the Company and its Executives.

The Company also has a separate Occupational, Health, Saftey and Environment ("OHSE")
Committee which reports to the Board and which is responsible for the oversight and
management of risks associated with OHSE. This committee reports to the Board on a
monthly basis.

7.2

7.3

7.4

The annual report details material financial risks which arose during the reporting period (see
notes to financial statements).
As detailed at 7.1 the Board established a separate Risk Management Committee comprising
of senior management to design and implement a risk management and internal control
system to better manage the Company's material risks. The Risk Management Committee
reports directly to the Board.

The Board should require management to design and implement the risk management
and internal control system to manage the company's material risks and report to it on
whether those risks are being managed effectively. The Board should disclose that
management has reported to it as to the effectiveness of the company's management of
its material business risks.

The Board should disclose whether it has received assurance from the Chief Executive
Officer and the Chief Financial Officer that the declaration provided in accordance with
section 295A of the Corporations Act is founded on a sound system of risk management
and internal control and that the system is operating effectively in all material respects
in relation to financial reporting risks
Companies should provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on
Principle 7.

8

REMUNERATE FAIRLY AND RESPONSIBLY

8.1

The Board should establish a remuneration committee

8.2

The remuneration committee should be structured so that it:
Consists of a majority of independent Directors
Is chaired by the independent Chair
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The Risk Management Committee has a charter and duties and responsibilities statement
outlining its key functions and processes.
The Board has received assurance from the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
that the s295A declaration is founded on a sound system of risk management and internal
control and the system is operating effectively in all material respects in relation to financial
risks.
In accordance with the ‘Guide to Reporting on Principle 7’, the Company provides the
following information:
(a) The Company has not departed from Recommendations 7.1 to 7.4.
(b) The Board has received the report from management under Recommendation 7.2.
(c) The Board has received assurance from Mr Robin King, as the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer and Mr Colin Napier as Chief Financial Officer, under Recommendation 7.3
The Board has established a Human Resources and Compensation Committee. The
Committee's role is to assist the Board in establishing human resources and compensation
policies and practices for directors, key Executives and employees.
Refer Director’s Report
Refer Director’s Report
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Principle

Corporate Governance best practice recommendation
Has at least 3 members

Compliance


8.3

Companies should clearly distinguish the structure of Non-Executive Director’s
remuneration from that of Executive Directors and senior Executives



8.4

Companies should provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on
Principle 8.
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How we comply
Although the committee currently has Mr Peter Wallace and Mr Boon Wee Kuah as
members, the committee throughout the period sought input and received guidance from
other Non-Executive Directors.
Refer Remuneration Report, there are clearly identified structures for Non-Executive
Directors and Senior Executives. At the time of writing this report there are no Executive
Directors in place.
In accordance with the ‘Guide to Reporting on Principle 8’, the Company provides the
following information:
(a) There are no schemes for retirement benefits, other than statutory superannuation, in
existence for the Non-Executive Directors;
(b) As at the date of this statement, the Company is of the view that it has complied with
each of the Recommendations under Principle 8, except for Recommendation 8.2. An
explanation for the departure from Recommendation 8.2 is set out above.
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